TATA SECURITIES LIMITED
Annual Report 2016-17

BOARD’S REPORT
To the Members,
The Board has pleasure in presenting the Twenty Third Annual Report and the Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year (“FY”) ended March 31, 2017.
1.

BACKGROUND
Tata Securities Limited (“Tata Securities” or “Company”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
Tata Capital Limited (“TCL”), is engaged in the business of:
• Investment Banking services;
• Depository Participant services as a Depository Participant of the Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”) and the National Securities Depository Limited
(“NSDL”); and
• Distribution of Mutual Fund units and third party financial products.
The Company also holds licenses for carrying on activities as a stock broker from the
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) and BSE Limited (“BSE”).

2.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The performance of the Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2017 is,
summarized below:
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During the year under review, total income of the Company stood at Rs. 23.53 crore, as
compared to Rs. 21.94 crore in the previous financial year, an increase by 7.25%. The
Profit for the same period stood at Rs. 1.67 crore, as compared to the Loss of
Rs. 11.83 crore in the previous financial year.
3.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY

3.1

Retail and Institutional Equity Business
During the year under review, Tata Securities realigned its business to focus on profitable
segments. In order to achieve the same, the Company curtailed its Retail Equity and
Institutional Equity businesses, both of which were not performing well for the past three
years. However, the licenses obtained from NSE and BSE for carrying out stock broking
activities have been retained.

3.2

Institutional Distribution Business
Tata Securities is a distributor of Mutual Fund Schemes. A separate plan for direct
investments in Mutual Fund (“MF”) units of schemes came into effect from
January 1, 2013 and had an adverse impact on the revenue from distribution of Mutual
Fund schemes. There was an impact on the Average Assets Under Management
(“AUM”) as well as the assets mobilized. As on March 31, 2017, the institutional and
corporate client base was about 985, comprising primarily of corporate clients, including
companies from the Tata eco-system.
The average AUM of the Company was Rs. 7,879 crore during FY 2016-17 as against
Rs. 5,449 crore during FY 2015-16. During the year under review, the Company
mobilized a sum of Rs. 1,77,436 crore as against Rs. 1,56,670 crore in the previous year.

3.3

Investment Banking Services
During the year, the Company advised and successfully completed two cross border
Merger and Amalgamation transactions. This included advising Tata AutoComp Systems
Limited for the acquisition of Sweden based TitanX Holding AB. The Company’s
association with the Terra Alliance has resulted in a transaction closure for the year,
where the team advised an Austria based Multinational Corporation (“MNC”) on the
acquisition of a fruit processing company in India. There are further mandates under
development, independently and through the Terra Alliance. The gross revenue from all
the transactions handled during FY 2016-17 stood at Rs. 11.47 crore, as compared to
Rs. 1.23 crore in FY 2015-16.

3.4

Plans for improvement of performance
The Company has been making concerted efforts and is attempting to increase the
revenue stream in the ensuing financial year through initiatives that will help the
Company to enhance the advisory services offering to corporate entities investing in
mutual fund units and third party financial products and execute mandates received for
investment banking.
One of the key initiatives in FY 2017-18 will be to leverage cross selling opportunities
within the Tata eco-system and Tata Capital clients.

4.

RENEWALS / PERMANENT REGISTRATION
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has:
(i) granted permanent registration to the Company as a Depository Participant of NSDL,
with effect from September 10, 2013;
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(ii)

granted permanent registration to the Company for the Merchant Banking activity,
with effect from July 2, 2014;

(iii)

granted permanent registration to the Company as a Stock Broker, with effect from
August 28, 2015; and

(iv)

granted registration to the Company as a Research Analyst for a period of 5 years
from November 5, 2015 to November 4, 2020.

SHARE CAPITAL
The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 101,00,00,000, consisting of
8,10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each and 2,00,00,000 Compulsorily Convertible
Cumulative Preference Shares (“CCCPS”) of Rs. 10/- each.
The Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 18,82,94,180
consisting of 38,29,418 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each and 1,50,00,000 CCCPS of
Rs. 10/- each, fully paid, which is entirely held by TCL.
There was no change in the Authorised, Issued, Subscribed or Paid-Up Share Capital
during FY 2016-17.

6.

DIVIDEND
In view of the accumulated losses of the Company, to conserve the resources of the
Company and taking into consideration its business plans, the Board of Directors do not
recommend any dividend on the Equity and Preference Share Capital of the Company for
FY 2016-17.

7.

FINANCE
During FY 2016-17, the Company met its funding requirements through Inter Corporate
Deposits (“ICDs”) from TCL and the Company also has arrangements in place with banks
for meeting its working capital requirements. As on March 31, 2017, the Company has
repaid all the ICDs borrowed from TCL and has Nil borrowings from banks.

8.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS
In accordance with the guidelines issued by SEBI, the Company has appointed
M/s. NMAH & Associates, Chartered Accountants, for conducting the internal audit of
Stock Broking and Depository Participant operations. The purpose of this internal audit is
to examine whether the processes and procedures followed and the operations carried
out by the Trading Members/Clearing Members meet the requirements prescribed by
SEBI, the Stock Exchanges and the Depositories. In addition to this, the internal control
system is supported by an internal audit process for reviewing the design, adequacy and
efficacy of the Company’s internal controls, including its systems and processes and
compliance with regulations and procedures. Internal Audit Reports are discussed with the

Management and are reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board, which also reviews
the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls in the Company.
The Company’s internal control system is commensurate with the size, nature and
operations of the Company.
9.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Management had appointed an external consultant and formed a Cross Functional
Team (“CFT”) comprising Operating Managers, Internal Audit and Risk to document and
evaluate the design, adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Internal Financial
Controls of the Company, broadly in accordance with the criteria established under the
Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”). Entity Level Control framework
document based on COSO 2013 framework has been documented. The documentation of
process maps, key controls, standard operating procedures and risk registers has been
completed for all businesses and functions under the supervision of the CFT. Further,
during FY 2016-17, Management testing has been conducted on a sample basis for all
key processes and remedial action has been taken or agreed upon with a finite closure
date where in control weaknesses were identified. The Internal Audit team has also
conducted a review of the Internal Financial Controls and remedial action has been taken
or agreed upon with a finite closure date where in control weaknesses were identified.
There are no material unaddressed internal financial controls related observations
outstanding as at March 31, 2017. Based on the above, the Board believes that adequate
Internal Financial Controls exist.

10.

HUMAN RESOURCES
The Company had 24 employees on its payroll as at March 31, 2017 as compared to 121
employees as on March 31, 2016. During FY 2016-17, except for the employees who
exited and 24 employees who were retained, all the other employees were transferred, in
phases, to other subsidiary companies of TCL, considering their skill sets and experience.
The Company recognizes the value of its human capital and is continuously upgrading
skill levels of its workforce through regular internal and external training and management
development workshops.

11.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (“CSR”)
The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) relating to CSR are not
applicable to the Company.

12.

COMPLIANCE
The Company has complied with and continues to comply with all the applicable
provisions of the Act, Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, SEBI (Stock
Brokers & Sub-Brokers) Regulations, 1992, the Depositories Act, 1996, SEBI
(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996, SEBI (Merchant Bankers) Regulations,
1992, SEBI (KYC (Know Your Customer) Registration Agency) Regulations, 2011, SEBI
(Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014, SEBI (Research Analysts)
Regulations, 2014 and other applicable rules/regulations/guidelines issued from time to
time.

The Company has also been in continuous compliance with all the applicable Regulations,
Circulars and Guidelines issued by SEBI, the Stock Exchanges, the Depositories and
other Regulatory Authorities relating to disclosures and submission of periodic reports.
During the year under review, there were no frauds committed by the Company and no
material frauds committed on the Company by its officers or employees.
Further, during FY 2016-17, there were no frauds reported by the Statutory Auditors to the
Audit Committee or the Board under Section 143(12) of the Act.
The Company has deployed “ComplianceCheck” (“Application”), an online platform to
report and monitor compliances. The Application has features such as generation of
compliance task alerts, generation of compliance reports and updating the compliance
tasks based on regulatory developments. Compliance Status Reports are submitted on a
regular basis to the Chief Financial Officer and are placed before the Board, on a halfyearly basis, by the Company Secretary.
The Company has, in terms of the provisions of the applicable regulations formulated by
SEBI, appointed Ms. Pinal Zatakia, Company Secretary as the Compliance Officer in
respect of the business carried out by the Company for Stock Broking, Depository
Participant and Merchant Banker and has also appointed her as the Principal Officer for
the purpose of the Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002.
13.

REGULATORY ACTION
There are no significant or material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and operations of the Company in future.

14.

DEPOSITS
The Company did not hold any public deposits at the beginning of the year nor has it
accepted any public deposits during the year under review.

15.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS
During FY 2016-17, the Company has not made any investments, granted loans to any
person or body corporate, given guarantees or provided security in connection with loans
to any other body corporate or persons in terms of the provisions of Section 186 of the Act.

16.

DIRECTORS
In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. Noshir J. Driver, is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting (“AGM”) and is eligible for re-appointment. The Members of the Company may
wish to refer to the accompanying Notice of the AGM of the Company, for a brief resume
of Mr. Driver.
Pursuant to Section 149(7) of the Act, the Company has received declarations from the
Independent Directors viz. Mr. Prabhakar Dalal and Ms. Sangeeta Singh, stating that they
continue to meet the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act.
Mr. Dalal and Ms. Singh, being Independent Directors of the Company, are not liable to
retire by rotation.

17.

EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS
Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Board has carried out an annual evaluation of
its own performance, the individual Directors (including the Chairman) as well as an
evaluation of the working of all Board Committees. The Board of Directors was assisted
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”). The performance evaluation
was carried out by seeking inputs from all the Directors/Members of the Committees, as
the case may be. The criteria for evaluating the performance of the Board as a whole
covered various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as fulfilment of key
responsibilities, structure of the Board and its composition, establishment and delineation
of responsibilities of the Board Committees, effectiveness of Board processes,
information and functioning, Board culture and dynamics, etc. The criteria for evaluation
of individual Directors covered parameters such as attendance and contribution at
meetings, guidance to Management, etc. The criteria for evaluation of the Board
Committees covered areas related to degree of fulfilment of key responsibilities,
adequacy of Board Committee composition, effectiveness of meetings, Committee
dynamics, quality of relationship of the Committee with the Board and the Management,
etc.
Further, pursuant to the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation (“Guidance Note”), issued
by SEBI, additional criteria had been introduced and also, those companies which were
not covered under Chapter IV of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, were encouraged to follow the additional criteria. The
Board of the Company followed the said additional criteria recommended under the
Guidance Note.
Pursuant to the provisions of Schedule IV to the Act, the Independent Directors had held
their separate Meeting on March 23, 2017. The feedback of the Independent Directors on
their review of the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole,
the performance of the Chairman of the Company and the assessment of the quality,
quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and
the Board, was taken into consideration by the Board in carrying out the performance
evaluation.

18.

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE
COMPANY
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) of the Board comprises
Ms. Sangeeta Singh, (Chairperson), Mr. Praveen P. Kadle, Mr. Francisco J. Da Cunha,
and Mr. Prabhakar Dalal. The NRC develops the competency requirements of the Board
based on the industry and strategy of the Company, conducts a gap analysis and
recommends the reconstitution of the Board, as and when required. It also recommends
to the Board, the appointment of Directors having good personal and professional
reputation and conducts reference checks and due diligence of all Directors, before
recommending them to the Board. Besides the above, the NRC ensures that the new
Directors are familiarized with the operations of the Company and endeavours to provide
relevant training to the Directors.
In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act, the Board of Directors have
adopted a Policy on Board Diversity and Director Attributes and the Remuneration Policy.
The Policy on Board Diversity and Director Attributes has been framed to encourage
diversity of thought, experience, knowledge, perspective, age and gender in the Board.
The Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and all other
employees is aligned to the philosophy on the commitment of fostering a culture of

leadership with trust. The Remuneration Policy aims to ensure that the level and
composition of the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and all other
employees is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate them to
successfully run the Company. The Policy on Board Diversity and Director Attributes as
also the Remuneration Policy of the Company are attached as Annexures ‘A’ and ‘B’,
respectively.
19.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (“KMP”)
During FY 2016-17, Mr. Sanjeet Dawar, Chief Operating Officer-Retail Equity Business,
was appointed as the Manager of the Company for a period of 5 years with effect from
April 25, 2016. Mr. Dawar ceased to be the Manager of the Company, with effect from
December 9, 2016, consequent upon his transfer to a fellow subsidiary company. Mr.
Bineet Jha ceased to be the Company Secretary and KMP of the Company, with effect
from January 20, 2017, consequent upon his resignation. The Board places on record its
appreciation for the services rendered by Mr. Dawar and Mr. Jha during their tenure with
the Company.
Mr. Aneesh Hosangadi is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. Ms. Pinal Zatakia
was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company with effect from April 26, 2017.
Accordingly, Mr. Hosangadi and Ms. Zatakia are the Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) of
the Company, as on the date of this Report.
Further, at the Meeting of the Board of Directors held on April 26, 2017, Mr. Himanshu
Chaturvedi, Senior Vice President - Investment Banking Business, was appointed as the
Manager and KMP of the Company, for a period of 5 years with effect from May 1, 2017.
The approval of the Members is being sought at the ensuing AGM of the Company, for the
appointment and payment of remuneration (for a period of three years) to Mr. Chaturvedi.

20.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems
established and maintained by the Company, work performed by the Internal Auditors
and Statutory Auditors including the audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting by the Statutory Auditors and the reviews performed by the Management and
the relevant Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the
opinion that the Company’s Internal Financial Controls were adequate and effective,
during FY 2016-17.
Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of
their knowledge and ability, confirm that:
a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed and that there are no material departures thereof;
b. they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
profits and loss and the cash flows of the Company for the year;
c.

they had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. they had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e. they had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls were adequate and operating effectively; and
f.
21.

they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company recognizes its role as a corporate citizen and endeavors to adopt the best
practices and the highest standards of Corporate Governance through transparency in
business ethics, accountability to its customers, government and others. The Company’s
activities are carried out in accordance with good corporate practices and the Company is
constantly striving to better them by adopting the best practices.
The Company believes that governance practices enable the Management to direct and
control the affairs of the Company in an efficient manner and to achieve the Company’s
goal of maximizing value for all its stakeholders.
The Corporate Governance philosophy is further strengthened with the adherence to the
Tata Code of Conduct (“TCOC”), which articulates the values, ethics and business
principles and serves as a guide to the Company, its directors and employees,
supplemented with an appropriate mechanism to report any concern pertaining to
non-adherence to the said TCOC. In addition, the Company has adopted Governance
Guidelines on Board Effectiveness, a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading,
a Whistle Blower Policy, a Policy against Sexual Harassment in the Workplace, a
remuneration Policy, a Policy on Board Diversity and Director Attributes, a Code of
Conduct for Non-Executive Directors and an Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy.
TCL has signed the Tata Brand Equity and Business Promotion (“BEBP”) Agreement with
Tata Sons Limited on behalf of its subsidiaries including Tata Securities, for subscribing
to the TATA BEBP Scheme. The Company abides by the TCOC and the norms for using
the Tata Brand identity.
i. Board of Directors
The Board of Directors along with its Committees provides leadership and guidance to
the Company’s Management and directs, supervises and controls the activities of the
Company.
•

The size of the Board is commensurate with the size and business of the Company.
At present, the Board comprises six Directors viz. Mr. Praveen P. Kadle, Mr. Phillie D
Karkaria, Mr. Francisco J Da Cunha, Mr. Noshir J Driver, Mr. Prabhakar Dalal and
Ms. Sangeeta Singh. Mr. Dalal and Ms. Singh are Independent Directors (“IDs”) of
the Company. All the Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the
criteria as mentioned under Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. Mr. Kadle,
Mr. Karkaria, Mr. Da Cunha, Mr. Driver are Non-Executive Director (“NED”) of the
Company.

•

During FY 2016-17, five Meetings of the Board of Directors were held on the
following dates: April 25, 2016, July 21, 2016, October 24, 2016, January 25, 2017
and February 16, 2017. Details of Directors, their attendance at Board Meetings and
at the previous AGM of the Company are, given below:

Name of Director(s)

Director
Identification
Number

Mr. Praveen P Kadle,
Chairman
Mr. Phillie D Karkaria
Mr. Francisco J Da
Cunha
Mr. Noshir J Driver
Mr. Prabhakar Dalal
Ms. Sangeeta Singh

Category

Board
Meetings
Attended

00016814

Non-Executive

5

Whether
present at
previous AGM
held on
May 26, 2016
Yes

00059397
00904680

Non-Executive
Non-Executive

5
4

No
No

00025025
00544948
06920906

Non-Executive
Independent
Independent

4
5
5

No
Yes
No

•

Mr. Phillie D Karkaria, Chairman of the Audit Committee and Ms. Sangeeta Singh,
Chairperson of the NRC had respectively authorized Mr. Prabhakar Dalal, a Member
of both the Committees, to attend the last AGM on their behalf.

•

The Company paid Sitting Fees for attending meetings of the Board and its
Committees for FY 2016-17, within the maximum prescribed limits, to the
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. As requested by
Mr. Praveen P. Kadle, no sitting fee was paid to him, since he is the Managing
Director & CEO of TCL, the holding company.
Details of the Sitting fees are, given below:
Name of Director(s)

Mr. Phillie D Karkaria
Mr. Francisco J Da Cunha
Mr. Noshir J Driver
Mr. Prabhakar R Dalal
Ms. Sangeeta K Singh
•

Sitting Fees paid for attending
Board
and
Committee
Meetings during FY 2016-17
Rs. 3,30,000
Rs. 1,20,000
Rs. 1,20,000
Rs. 3,90,000
Rs. 3,90,000

None of the NEDs and IDs had any pecuniary relationships or transactions with the
Company during the year under review.

ii. Committees of the Board
The Board has constituted Committees with specific terms of reference / scope to focus
effectively on issues and ensure expedient resolution of diverse matters. These are the
Audit Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”). The
Company Secretary is the Secretary of the aforementioned Committees. The Board of
Directors and the Committees also take decisions by circular resolutions which are noted
by the Board / respective Committees at their next meeting. The minutes of the meetings
of all Committees of the Board are circulated to the Board of Directors, for their noting.
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises Mr. Phillie D. Karkaria, Non-Executive Director as
Chairman, Mr. Prabhakar Dalal, Independent Director and Ms. Sangeeta Singh,

Independent Director. The composition of the Audit Committee is in line with the
provisions of Section 177 of the Act. All the Members have the ability to read and
understand financial statements and have relevant finance and/or audit experience. The
Internal Audit function is outsourced to M/s NMAH & Associates, Chartered Accountants,
which reports to the Audit Committee and works under its supervision. Further, the
Internal audit function is provided an oversight by the Internal Audit Department of TCL,
the holding company, headed by the Chief Internal Auditor of TCL..
The Board has adopted an Audit Committee Charter which defines the composition of
the Audit Committee, its authority, role, responsibilities and powers and reporting
functions in accordance with the Act. The said Charter is reviewed from time to time.
Given below, inter alia, is a gist of the responsibilities of the Audit Committee:
- Recommend the appointment and removal of the Auditors and their
remuneration and the nature and scope of audit
- Ensure adequacy of internal controls and compliances and recommend remedial
measures
- Review adequacy of the Internal Audit function
- Review and monitor the auditors’ independence and performance and
effectiveness of the audit process
- Oversee financial reporting process and disclosure of financial information
- Examine the financial statements and the auditors’ report thereon
- Evaluate internal financial controls and the risk management systems
- Act as a link between the Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and the Board of
Directors
- Review accounting policies
- Monitor compliance with the Tata Code of Conduct
- Approve any transactions of the Company with related parties or any subsequent
modifications thereof
- Scrutinize inter-corporate loans and investments
- Evaluate the valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, if necessary
- Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters
- Review findings of internal investigations / frauds / irregularities, etc.
- Carry out additional functions as contained in the regulatory requirements
applicable to the Company or in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee
- Carry out the responsibilities under the Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider
Trading and the Code of Corporate Disclosure Practices.

During FY 2016-17, six Meetings of the Audit Committee were held on the following
dates: April 25, 2016, June 24, 2016, July 21, 2016, October 24, 2016,
December 23, 2016 and January 25, 2017. The composition of the Audit Committee and
the attendance of its Members at its Meetings held during FY 2016-17, is given below:
Name of the Member(s)

Category

Mr. Phillie D Karkaria,
Chairman
Mr. Prabhakar Dalal
Ms. Sangeeta Singh

Non-Executive

No. of Meetings
attended
6

Independent
Independent

6
6

The Board has accepted all the recommendations made by the Audit Committee during
the year.
Besides the Members of the Committee, meetings of the Audit Committee are usually
attended by the remaining Directors, Chief Financial Officer, Business Heads , Company
Secretary, Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditor. Further, Meetings of the Audit
Committee for consideration of Financials are also attended by all the Directors.
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The NRC of the Board comprises Ms. Sangeeta Singh, Independent Director as
Chairperson, Mr. Praveen P. Kadle, Non-Executive Director, Mr. Francisco J. Da Cunha,
Non-Executive Director and Mr. Prabhakar Dalal, Independent Director. The NRC
identifies persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in
Senior Management, recommends to the Board their appointment or removal and
carries out the evaluation of every Director’s performance on a periodic basis. The role
of the Committee is in line with that prescribed under the Act.
During FY 2016-17, one Meeting of the NRC was held on April 25, 2016,
and was attended by all Members, except Mr. Da Cunha.
iii. Details of Managerial Personnel:
The terms and conditions, inter alia, of the appointment and remuneration of
Mr. Sanjeet Dawar is, as given below:
Particulars

Remuneration

Mr. Sanjeet Dawar
(Manager)
(April 25, 2016 to
December 9, 2016)
Salary: Rs. 2,31,065/- per month upto
maximum of Rs. 3,50,000/- per month.
The annual increments which would be
effective 1st April each year, to be
decided by the Board or any Committee
thereof and would be merit-based and
after taking into account the Company’s
performance as well. Such Incentive
Remuneration
not
exceeding
Rs. 75,00,000/- to be paid at the
discretion of the Board annually, based

Mr. Himanshu Chaturvedi
(Manager)

Salary: Rs. 2,24,751/- per month
upto maximum of Rs. 4,00,000/- per
month. The annual increments
which would be effective 1st April
each year, to be decided by the
Board or any Committee thereof and
would be merit-based and after
taking into account the Company’s
performance as well. Such Incentive
Remuneration
not
exceeding
Rs. 80,00,000/- to be paid at the

on certain performance criteria and
such other parameters as may be
considered appropriate from time to
time. In addition, benefits, perquisites
and allowances as per the Agreement.

Minimum
Where in any financial year during the
Remuneration currency of the tenure of the Manager,
the Company has no profits or its profits
are inadequate, the Company will pay to
the Manager remuneration by way of
Salary,
Benefits,
Perquisites
and
Allowances and Incentive Remuneration,
as specified above.
Term
& Term of five years, with effect from April
Termination
25, 2016.
The appointment may be terminated by
either party by giving to the other party,
three months’ notice of such termination
or the Company paying three months’
remuneration which shall be limited to
provision of monthly basic Salary, in lieu
of the Notice.
Other Terms

The said terms and conditions also
include clauses pertaining to adherence
with the Tata Code of Conduct,
including no conflict of interest with the
Company, non-solicit, non-compete and
maintenance of confidentiality.

discretion of the Board annually,
based on certain performance
criteria and such other parameters
as may be considered appropriate
from time to time. In addition,
benefits, perquisites and allowances
as per the Agreement.
Where in any financial year during
the currency of the tenure of the
Manager, the Company has no profits
or its profits are inadequate, the
Company will pay to the Manager
remuneration by way of Salary,
Benefits, Perquisites and Allowances
and Incentive Remuneration, as
specified above.
Term of five years, with effect from
May 1, 2017.
The appointment may be terminated
by either party by giving to the other
party, three months’ notice of such
termination or the Company paying
three months’ remuneration which
shall be limited to provision of
monthly basic Salary, in lieu of the
Notice.
The said terms and conditions also
include clauses pertaining to
adherence with the Tata Code of
Conduct, including no conflict of
interest with the Company, nonsolicit,
non-compete
and
maintenance of confidentiality.

The details of the ESOPs offered to and exercised by Mr. Dawar and Mr. Chaturvedi
under the Tata Capital Limited Employee Stock Purchase / Option Scheme by are, as
under:
Scheme
ESPS 2009
ESOP2011
ESPS 2013
ESOP 2016
ESOP 2017

Sanjeet Dawar
Offered
Exercised
74223
74223
8001
0
10000
0
10000
-

Himanshu Chaturvedi
Offered
Exercised
53333
53333
10000
0
10000
0

iv. The Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai. The
Corporate Identity Number allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
is U67120MH1994PLC080918 and the website of the Company is www.tatacapital.com.

v. The provisions of Section 204 of the Act regarding Secretarial Audit are not applicable to
the Company.
22.

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
The Company is committed to provide and promote a safe and healthy work environment
for all its employees.
The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and has
adopted a ‘Prevention of Sexual Harassment’ (“POSH”) Policy that is in line with the
provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder for prevention and redressal of
complaints of sexual harassment at the workplace and a structured reporting and
redressal mechanism has been constituted. An Internal Complaints Committee, known as
the POSH Committee, has been constituted, to inquire into complaints of sexual
harassment and to recommend appropriate action. The POSH Policy is displayed on the
Company’s Intranet and is also communicated to employees through e-mails and
communication campaigns. Posters on the POSH Policy, giving contact details of POSH
Committee Members are displayed in the offices of the Company.
The Company has not received any complaint on sexual harassment during
FY 2016-17.

23.

STATUTORY AUDITORS
At the last AGM of the Company, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants,
Mumbai (“DHS”) (ICAI Firm Registration No. 117366W/W - 100018), the Statutory
Auditors, were appointed for a term of one year until the ensuing Twenty Third AGM.
In view of the mandatory requirement for rotation of auditors upon completion of ten years
of association with a company, in terms of Section 139 of the Act, DHS would retire as
the Auditors of the Company as also of TCL, the holding company, at the conclusion of
TCL’s ensuing Twenty Sixth AGM. TCL proposes to appoint B S R & Co. LLP (“BSR”),
Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022), as the
new Statutory Auditors of TCL and has also, recommended their appointment as
Statutory Auditors, in all its Indian subsidiary companies.
Accordingly, the Company has received a Special Notice from its Member viz. TCL,
recommending the appointment of BSR as the new Statutory Auditors of the Company.
BSR are proposed to be appointed for a term of five consecutive years commencing from
the conclusion of the Twenty Third AGM till the conclusion of the Twenty Eighth AGM of
the Company. BSR have expressed their willingness to act as the Auditors of the
Company, and have further confirmed that, if appointed, the said appointment would be in
conformity with the provisions of Section 139 read with Section 141 of the Act along with
the Rules made thereunder.
The Board recommends the appointment of BSR as Statutory Auditors of the Company
for a term of five consecutive years commencing from the conclusion of the Twenty Third
AGM up to the conclusion of the Twenty Eighth AGM of the Company to be held in the
year 2022, subject to the approval of the Members of the Company at the ensuing AGM
and ratification of their appointment at every AGM, if required under the Act.

24.

EXPLANATIONS ON STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT
There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by
DHS, in their Report dated April 26, 2017, on the Financial Statements of the Company
for FY 2016-17.

25.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY
The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of the Act, as applicable.

26.

INFORMATION ON MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between March 31, 2017 and April 26, 2017, being the
date of this Report.

27.

PARTICULARS OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS U/S 188 OF THE ACT
The Company has adopted a Framework on Related Party Transactions for the purpose
of identification and monitoring of such transactions.
A Statement containing the details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions
with Related Parties on an arm’s length basis with respect to transactions as required
under Section 188 (1) of the Act and the applicable Rules framed thereunder in the
prescribed Form No. AOC-2, is attached as Annexure ‘C’. Further, details of Related Party
Transactions as required to be disclosed by Accounting Standard – 18 on “Related Party
Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
During FY 2016-17, the Company has not entered into any transactions with Related
Parties which are not in its ordinary course of business or not on an arm’s length basis and
which require disclosure in this Report in terms of the provisions of Section 188(1) of the
Act.

28.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY
EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

ABSORPTION

AND

FOREIGN

(A) Conservation of energy:
i.

Steps taken / impact on conservation of energy;
Considering the nature and operations, the Company requires normal
consumption of electricity. The Company is taking steps to reduce the
consumption of energy.

ii.

Steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy;

iii.

Capital investment on energy conservation equipments.
In view of the nature of activities carried on by the Company, there is no capital
investment made on energy conservation equipments.

(B) Technology absorption:
i.
ii.

The efforts made towards technology absorption;
The benefits derived
like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution;
iii. In case of imported technology (imported during the last 3 years reckoned from
the beginning of the financial year):
(a) The details of technology imported;
(b) The year of import;
(c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed;
(d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the
reasons thereof; and
iv. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development.
Given the nature of the activities of the Company, the matters under (i) to (iv) above
would not be applicable to the Company.
(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:
The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year under review
was Rs. 43 lakh and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the year under review in
terms of actual outflows, was Rs. 15 lakh.
29.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN
An extract of the Annual Return as prescribed under Section 92(3) of the Act and the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, in the prescribed Form
MGT-9, is attached as Annexure ‘D’.

30.
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Annexure ‘A’

POLICY ON BOARD DIVERSITY AND DIRECTOR ATTRIBUTES
1.

PURPOSE
In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the Governance
Guidelines on Board Effectiveness issued by Tata Sons Limited and adopted by the
Board of Directors, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) is, inter alia,
required to formulate a Policy on Board Diversity and lay down the criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director.
Diversity in the composition of the Board of Directors has become essential in view of
the expansion of business, greater social responsibility, increasing emphasis on
Corporate Governance, need for addressing concerns of diverse stakeholders and
necessity for managing risks in the business effectively. A Board composed of
appropriately qualified and skilled people, with a broad range of experience relevant to
the business, is important for the effective corporate governance and sustained
commercial success of a Company.
In view of the above, Tata Securities Limited (“TSL” or “Company”) has framed this
Policy on Board Diversity and Director Attributes (“Policy”) that encourages diversity of
thought, experience, knowledge, perspective, age and gender in the Board. The Policy
sets out the approach to diversity in the Board of Directors of the Company so as to
ensure that the Board has an appropriate blend of functional and industry expertise.
This Policy has been adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company, based on the
recommendations of the NRC.

2.

OBJECTIVES OF THE POLICY
The Objectives of the Policy include:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.
vi.

Board to drive diversity and have an appropriate blend of functional and industry
expertise;
While recommending the appointment of a director to, inter alia, consider the
manner in which the function and domain expertise of the individual contributes to
the overall skill domain mix of the Board;
To help the Company build a better Board that can draw upon a wide range of
perspectives, expertise, knowledge and experience;
To achieve an optimum and balanced Board, with a wide range of attributes;
To encourage healthy and open discussion and promote independence of
judgement in Board and Committee deliberations; and
To have an optimum mix of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors,
including Women Directors.

3.

POLICY STATEMENT
To meet the above Objectives:
i.

ii.
iii.

iv.

v.

4.

The Board of TSL will ensure that a transparent Board nomination process is in
place that encourages diversity of thought, experience, skills, knowledge,
perspective, age, nationality, gender, cultural and educational background;
It will be ensured that the Board has an appropriate blend of functional and industry
expertise and skills;
The consideration and selection of candidates for appointment to the Board will be
based on merit which shall include a review of any candidate’s integrity,
experience, educational background, industry or related experience and more
general experience;
Candidates that bring a diversity of background and opinion from amongst those
candidates with the appropriate background and industry or related expertise and
experience and having the ability to devote sufficient time to the affairs of the
Company, should be considered for appointment to the Board; and
While recommending the appointment of a Director, the NRC will consider the
criteria as laid down under the Act and applicable Regulations/Guidelines issued
by Statutory and Regulatory authorities, as also those issued by Tata Sons
Limited, from time to time, and the manner in which the function and domain
expertise of the individual will contribute to the overall skill-domain mix of the
Board.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVES
The NRC will largely rely on the regulatory provisions of the Act, and the Regulations/
Guidelines (issued and as amended from time to time by SEBI and as also the
Guidelines circulated by Tata Sons Limited and review the measurable objectives for
achieving diversity against these provisions and recommend the same to the Board for
adoption. At any given point of time, the Board may seek to improve one or more
aspects of its diversity and measure progress accordingly.

5.

MONITORING AND REPORTING
The NRC will review the Policy periodically, which will include an assessment of the
effectiveness of the Policy. The NRC will discuss any revision that may be required and
recommend the same to the Board for approval.

Annexure ‘B’
The Remuneration Policy

1. COMPENSATION PHILOSOPHY
Tata Securities Limited (“Company”) has adopted a Remuneration Policy based on a defined
formal compensation philosophy of Tata Capital Limited, the holding company. In order to build a
high performance culture, aligned to the Company’s Vision and Goals, the Compensation
Philosophy aims at providing a significant differential to superior performers and also segregating
increments and performance payouts, based on the actual performance of various business
verticals.
The aforementioned Compensation philosophy helps the Company to manage long term fixed
cost, keep up with market compensation and attract the right talent to help drive its growth plans.
The performance of the Company and its Business Units / Functions is measured against annual
budgets / targets, set as per the Balanced Score Card (BSC). Performance of individuals is
measured against Key Result Areas (KRAs) set at beginning of year and after considering any
revision of target during the year. The Annual Performance Rating would be considered for
calculating the Performance Pay. Rating would be on a 5 point scale.
Consistent with the principle of differential influence that an employee may have on the overall
performance of the Company, different weights are assigned for the Company’s performance, the
performance of Business Units / Functions and the performance of individuals. Thus, employees
in entry level / junior management have greater weightage for individual performance while
employees in senior leadership roles have maximum weightage for Company and Business Unit
Performance.
2. REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER
EMPLOYEES
The philosophy for remuneration of Directors, Senior Leadership Team, Key Managerial
Personnel (“KMP”) and all other employees of the Company is based on the commitment to
fostering a culture of leadership with trust. The Remuneration Policy is aligned to this philosophy.
This Remuneration Policy has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(3) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). In case of any inconsistency between the provisions of law
and this Remuneration Policy, the provisions of law shall prevail and the Company shall abide by
the applicable law. In case there are any changes in the law, the Company shall comply with the
applicable amended provisions. While formulating this Remuneration Policy, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) has considered the factors laid down under Section 178(4)
of the Act which are, as under:
“(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate directors of the quality required to run the company successfully;

(b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks; and

(c) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance
objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals.”
The key principles governing this Remuneration Policy are, as follows:
2.1 Remuneration f o r
Directors

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

2.2

Independent Directors and Non-Independent Non- Executive

Independent Directors (“ID”) and Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors (“NED”)
may be paid Sitting Fees (for attending the meetings of the Board and of Committees of
the Board of which they may be Members) and Commission within regulatory limits.
Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of Sitting Fees and Commission
will be recommended by the NRC for approval of the Board.
Overall remuneration (Sitting Fees and Commission) should be reasonable and
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors aligned to the requirements of the
Company (taking into consideration, the challenges faced by the Company and its
future growth imperatives).
Overall remuneration should be reflective of the size of the Company, complexity of
the sector/ industry/ Company’s operations and the Company’s capacity to pay the
remuneration.
Overall remuneration practices should be consistent with recognized best practices.
Quantum of Sitting Fees may be subject to review on a periodic basis, as required.
The aggregate Commission payable to all the NEDs and IDs will be recommended by
the NRC to the Board based on Company performance, profits, return to investors,
shareholder value creation and any other significant qualitative parameters, as may
be decided by the Board.
The NRC will recommend to the Board, the quantum of Commission for each
director based upon the outcome of the evaluation process which is driven by various
factors including attendance and time spent at Board and Committee meetings, individual
contribution at the meetings and contributions made by directors, other than at Board and
Committee meetings.
In addition to the Sitting Fees and Commission, the Company may pay to any
director such fair and reasonable expenditure, as may have been incurred by the
director while performing his / her role as a director of the Company. This could include
reasonable expenditure incurred by the director for attending Board / Board Committee
meetings, General Meetings, court convened meetings, meetings with Shareholders /
Creditors / Management, site visits, induction and training (arranged by the Company for
directors) and in obtaining professional advice from independent advisors in the
furtherance of his / her duties as a director.

Remuneration for Managing Director (“MD”) / Executive Directors (“ED”) / Manager /
CEO / KMP / rest of the employees (Note 1)
(i) The extent of overall remuneration to the MD / ED / KMPs / Manager / CEO /rest of the
employees should be sufficient to attract and retain talented and qualified individuals
suitable for t h e i r roles.
Hence, remuneration should be:
 market competitive (market for every role is defined as companies from which the
company attracts talent or companies to which the company loses talent);
 driven by the role played by the individual;





reflective of the size of the company, complexity of the sector / industry /
Company’s operations and the Company’s capacity to pay;
consistent with recognized best practices; and
aligned to any regulatory requirements.

(ii) In terms of remuneration mix or composition,
 the remuneration mix for the MD / ED / Manager / CEO should be as per the contract
approved by the Shareholders. In case of any change which is beyond the
remuneration approved by the Shareholders, the same would require the approval of
the Shareholders.



basic / fixed salary is provided to all employees to ensure that there is a steady income
in line with their skills and experience.



in addition to the basic / fixed salary, the Company provides employees with certain
perquisites, allowances and benefits to enable a certain level of lifestyle and to offer
scope for savings and tax optimization, where possible. The Company also provides all
employees with a social security net (subject to limits) by covering medical expenses
and hospitalization through re-imbursements or insurance cover and accidental death
and dismemberment through personal accident insurance.



the Company provides retirement benefits, as applicable.



in addition to the basic/ fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances as provided
above, the Company may provide MD/ ED / Manager / CEO such remuneration by way
of Commission, calculated with reference to the Net Profits of the Company in a
particular financial year, as may be determined by the Board, subject to the overall
ceilings stipulated in Section 197 of the Act. The specific amount payable to the MD/
EDs / Manager / CEO would be based on the performance of the MD / ED / Manager /
CEO as evaluated by the Board or the NRC and approved by the Board.
OR

 In addition to the basic/fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances as provided



above, the Company may provide to its MD / ED / Manager / CEO, such remuneration
by way of an annual incentive remuneration / performance linked bonus subject to the
achievement of certain performance criteria and such other parameters as may be
considered appropriate from time to time by the Board. An indicative list of factors that
may be considered for determination of the extent of this component are:
- Company’s performance on certain defined qualitative and quantitative
parameters, as may be decided by the Board from time to time,
- Industry benchmarks of remuneration,
- Performance of the individual.
The Company will provide the rest of the employees, a performance linked incentive
pay. The performance linked pay would be driven by the outcome of the performance
appraisal process and the performance of the Company.

2.3 Remuneration
other capacity

payable

to

Director

for

services rendered

in

No remuneration will be payable to the Directors for services rendered by such
Director in any other capacity unless:

a) The services rendered are of a professional nature;
b) The NRC is of the opinion that the director possesses requisite qualification for the
practice of the profession; and
c) Approval of the Central Government has been received, if required, for paying the same.
2.4 Loans to employees
The Company may grant loans to its employees on such terms and conditions as may be
determined by the Board or any Committee of the Board, from time to time, in accordance
with applicable laws.
2.5 Policy implementation
The NRC is responsible for recommending the Remuneration Policy to the Board. The
Board is responsible for approving and overseeing implementation of the Remuneration
Policy.
Note 1

Excludes employees covered by any long term settlements or specific term contracts. The
remuneration for these employees would be driven by the respective long term settlements or
contracts.

Annexure 'C'
Form No. AOC- 2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis - Not Applicable
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:
Sr. Name of the Party
No.

1

Tata Capital Limited

Nature of
Relationship

Holding Company

Nature of contracts/
arrangements/transactions

Inter Corporate Deposits ("ICD")
accepted during the year

ICDs Paid during the year

2

Tata Autocomp Systems Fellow Subsidiary
Limited
Company

Advisory Income

Amount

900

2,334

1,073

Duration of
the contracts /
arrangements/
transactions
Tenor upto 1 Year

Tenor upto 1 Year

Not Applicable

Salient terms of the contracts
or arrangements or transactions
including the value, if any
Cost of Funds below bank borrowing
rate, Cost of funds of provider for
previous month plus 100 bps
Cost of Funds below bank borrowing
rate, Cost of funds of provider for
previous month plus 100 bps
As per the mandate letter between
the Company and Tata Autocomp
Systems Limited

Notes :
1) 10% of total revenue is considered as threshold limit for identifcation of related party transaction, but total transaction value is considered for the reporting.
2) Appropriate approvals have been taken for Related Party Transactions.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mumbai
Date: July 28, 2017

Praveen P Kadle
Chairman

(Rs. In lakh)
Amount
paid as
advances,
if any

-

-

-

Annexure ‘D’
Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2017
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
______________________________________________________________________________________
I.

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i)

CIN: U67120MH1994PLC080918

ii) Registration Date: September 7, 1994
iii) Name of the Company: Tata Securities Limited
iv) a) Category: Company Limited by shares
b) Sub-Category of the Company: Indian Non-Government Company

v) Address of the Registered Office and contact details:
One Forbes, Dr. V. B. Gandhi Marg, Fort, Mumbai – 400001, Maharashtra, India.
Contact details:
Telephone Number: 022 66069400
E-mail id: pinal.zatakia@tatacapital.com

vi) Whether listed company: No
vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer agent, if any: Not Applicable
II.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:
Sr. No.
1
2
3

III.

Name and Description of main
products / services
Investment Banking
Share Broking
Institutional Distribution

NIC Code of the
Product/ service
66190
66120
64990

% to total turnover of
the company
48.75
24.78
19.59

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

Sr.
No

NAME AND
ADDRESS OF THE
COMPANY
1 Tata Capital Limited

CIN/GLN

U65990MH1991PLC060670

HOLDING/
SUBSIDIARY/
ASSOCIATE
Holding
Company

One Forbes,
Dr. V.B. Gandhi
Marg, Fort, Mumbai
– 400 001
The Company does not have any subsidiary or associate company.

% OF
SHARES
HELD
100%

APPLICABLE
SECTION
Section 2(46)

IV. A) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity):
i) Category-wise Shareholding:
Category of
Shareholders

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a)
Individual/HUF
b) Central Govt
c) State Govt
(s)
d) Bodies Corp.
e) Banks / FI
f) Any OtherD.
Sub-total (A)
(1):(2) Foreign
a) NRIs Individuals
b) Other –
Individuals
c) Bodies Corp.
d) Banks / FI
e) Any OtherD.
Sub-total (A)
(2):Total
shareholding
of Promoter
(A) =
(A)(1)+(A)(2)

No. of Shares held at the beginning of
the year
Demat
Physical
Total
% of
Total
Shares

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

%
Change
during
the
year

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

38,29,411
-

7
-

38,29,418
-

100
-

38,29,411
-

7
-

38,29,418
-

100
-

-

38,29,411

7

38,29,418

100

38,29,411

7

38,29,418

100

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

38,29,411

7

38,29,418

100

38,29,411

7

38,29,418

100

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

B. Public
Shareholding
1.
Institutions
a) Mutual
Funds
b) Banks / FI
c) Central
Govt
d) State
Govt(s)

e) Venture
Capital
Funds
f) Insurance
Companies
g) FIIs
h) Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds
i) Others
(specify)
Sub-total
(B)(1):2. NonInstitutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian
ii) Overseas
b) Individuals
i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh
ii) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of
Rs. 1 lakh
c) Others
Public
Charitable
Trust
TCL Employee
Welfare Trust
(ESOP Trust)
Sub-total
(B)(2):Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)
C. Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs
Grand Total
(A+B+C)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

38,29,411

7

38,29,418

100

38,29,411

7

38,29,418

100

-

ii) Shareholding of Promoters (Equity Share Capital):
Sr.
No.

Shareholder’s
Name

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year
No. of
Shares

1.

Tata Capital
Limited
Total

% of
total
Shares
of the
company

%
change
in
% of
%of Shares
share
total
Pledged /
holding
Shares
encumbered
during
of the
to total
the
company shares
year

Shareholding at the end of the
year

% of Shares No. of
Pledged /
Shares
encumbered
to total
shares

38,29,418

100%

-

38,29,418

100%

-

-

38,29,418

100%

-

38,29,418

100%

-

-

iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (Equity Share Capital) (please specify, if there is no
change):
Sr.
No.

1
2

3

Particulars

At the beginning
of the year
Date wise
Increase /
Decrease in
Promoters
Share holding
during the year
specifying the
reasons for
increase
/ decrease
(e.g. allotment
/ transfer /
bonus/ sweat
equity etc):
At the end of
the year

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year
No. of
% of total
shares
shares of the
company
38,29,418
-

No. of
shares

100%
-

38,29,418

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

38,29,418
-

100%

% of total shares of the company

100%
-

38,29,418

There has been no change in the shareholding of the promoters during the year.

100%

iv) Shareholding Pattern (Equity Share Capital) of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors,
Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Sr.
No.

1.
2.

3.

For each of the Top
10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year
No. of
% of total
shares
shares of
the
company

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year
No. of
% of total
shares
shares of
the
company

At the beginning of the
year
Date wise Increase /
Decrease in
Shareholding during
the year specifying the
reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity,
etc.)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

At the end of the year (
or on the date of
separation, if
separated during the
year)

-

-

-

-

v) Shareholding (Equity Share Capital) of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sr.
No.

For each of the Directors
and KMP

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of
shares

No. of
shares

% of total
shares of the
company

% of total
shares of
the
company

1.
2.

At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying the
reasons for increase
/ decrease
(e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat
equity etc)

-

-

-

-

3.

At the end of the year

-

-

-

-

B) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Preference Share Capital Breakup as percentage
Preference):

of Total

i) Category-wise Shareholding:
Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the
year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

%
Change
during
the year

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a)
Individual/HUF
b) Central Govt
c) State Govt (s)

d) Bodies Corp.

1,50,00,000

-

1,50,00,000

100

1,50,00,000

-

1,50,00,000

100

-

e) Banks / FI

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

f) Any OtherD.

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,50,00,000

-

1,50,00,000

100

1,50,00,000

-

1,50,00,000

100

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Sub-total (A)
(1):(2) Foreign
a) NRIs Individuals
b) Other –
Individuals
c) Bodies Corp.

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

d) Banks / FI

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

e) Any OtherD.
Sub-total (A)
(2):-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,50,00,000

-

1,50,00,000

100

1,50,00,000

-

1,50,00,000

100

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total
shareholding
of Promoter (A)
= (A)(1)+(A)(2)
B. Public
Shareholding
1.
Institutions
a) Mutual
Funds
b) Banks / FI
c) Central

Govt
d) State
Govt(s)
e) Venture
Capital
Funds
f) Insurance
Companies
g) FIIs

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

i) Indian

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

ii) Overseas

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,50,00,000

-

1,50,00,000

100

1,50,00,000

-

1,50,00,000

100

-

h) Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds
i) Others
(specify)
Sub-total
(B)(1):2. NonInstitutions
a) Bodies Corp.

b) Individuals
i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh
ii) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh
c) Others
Public
Charitable Trust
TCL Employee
Welfare Trust
(ESOP Trust)
Sub-total
(B)(2):Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)
C. Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs
Grand Total
(A+B+C)

ii) Shareholding of Promoters (Preference Share Capital):
Sr
No.

Shareholder’s
Name

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year
No. of
Shares

1

Tata Capital
Limited
Total

% of total
Shares of
the
company

1,50,00,000

100%

1,50,00,000

100%

Share holding at the end of the
year

% of Shares No. of
Pledged /
Shares
encumbered
to total
shares
1,50,00,000

-

% of total
Shares of
the
company
100%

1,50,00,000

%of Shares
Pledged /
encumbered
to total
shares
-

100%

%
change
in share
holding
during
the year

-

-

-

iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (Preference Share Capital) (please specify, if there is no
change):
Sr.
No.

For each of the Director
and KMP

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year
No. of
shares

1

At the beginning of the year

2

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase
/ decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc):
At the end of the year

3

% of total
shares of
the
company

1,50,00,000
-

100%
-

1,50,00,000

Cumulative
Shareholding
during the year
No. of
shares

1,50,00,000
-

100%

% of total
shares of
the
company
100%
-

1,50,00,000

100%

There has been no change in the shareholding of the promoters during the year
iv) Shareholding Pattern (Preference Share Capital) of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors,
Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Sr.
No.

1.

For each of the Top
10 Shareholders

At the beginning of
the year

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year
No.
of % of total shares of
shares
the company
-

-

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year
No.
of % of total shares of
shares
the company
-

-

2.

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Share
holding during the
year specifying the
reasons for increase
/ decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity,
etc.):

-

-

-

-

3.

At the end of the
year ( or on the date
of separation, if
separated during the
year)

-

-

-

-

v) Shareholding (Preference Share Capital) of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sr. For Each of the Directors and
No. KMP

Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative Shareholding
the year
during the year
No. of
shares

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of
shares

% of total
shares of the
company

1.
2.

At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
increase/ decrease
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):

-

-

-

-

3.

At the end of the year

-

-

-

-

V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment:
(Amount in Rs)
Particulars
Secured Loans
Unsecured
Deposits
Total
excluding
Loans
Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness
14,34,00,000
14,34,00,000
At the beginning of the financial
year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)
14,34,00,000
14,34,00,000
Change in Indebtedness during
90,02,334
90,02,334
the financial year
• Addition
• Reduction
Net Change
14,34,00,000
14,34,00,000

Indebtedness
At the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due

-

-

Total (i+ii+iii)

-

-

-

-

-

-

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
(Amount in Rs.)
Sl.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

1.

Gross salary

2.

(a)

Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,
1961

(b)

Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Incometax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
Stock Option*

Name of MD/WTD/
Manager
Mr. Sanjeet Dawar

Total Amount

62,33,198

62,33,198

4,68,814

4,68,814

-

-

3.

Sweat Equity

-

-

4.

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specifyD

-

-

5.

Others, please specify

-

-

67,02,012

67,02,012

Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

Since the Company has inadequate profits,
the remuneration had been paid as per
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) read with Schedule V of the Act.

Notes:
1.

Mr. Sanjeet Dawar was appointed as a Manager on April 25, 2016 and he ceased to be
Manager of the Company w.e.f. December 9, 2016. Accordingly, the details of remuneration
furnished above is for the period April 25, 2016 to December 9, 2016.

B. Remuneration to other directors:
(Amount in Rs.)
Sr.
no
.1.

Particulars of
Remuneration
Independent Directors

Name of Directors
Mr. Prabhakar
Dalal

 Fee for attending
board committee
meetings

Ms. Sangeeta
Singh

3,90,000

3,90,000

7,80,000

 Commission

-

-

-

 Others, please specify

-

-

-

Total (1)
2.

Total
Amount

Other Non-Executive
Directors
 Fee for attending
board committee
meetings

3,90,000
Mr.
Phillie
Karkaria

3,90,000

7,80,000

D Mr. Francisco J Mr. Noshir J Driver
Da Cunha

3,30,000

1,20,000

Total
Amount

1,20,000

5,70,000

 Commission

-

-

-

 Others, please specify

-

-

-

Total (2)
Total (B)=(1+2)

3,30,000

1,20,000

1,20,000

7,20,000

5,10,000

1,20,000

5,70,000
13,50,000

Total Managerial
80,52,012
Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per Since the Company has inadequate profits, the remuneration had been paid
the Act
as per Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Schedule
V of the Act.

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD:
Sl.
No.

1.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Gross salary
(a)Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

(Amount in Rs.)
Key Managerial Personnel
CEO

Company Secretary

NA

Bineet Jha

CFO

Total

Aneesh
Hosangadi
9,09,384

17,18,717

26,28,101

-

7,782

7,782

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3)
of
Income-tax Act, 1961

-

-

-

2.

Stock Option*

-

-

-

3.

Sweat Equity

-

-

-

4.

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specifyD

-

-

-

5.

Others, please
specify
Total

-

-

-

9,09,384

17,26,499

26,35,883

(b)Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
of Income-tax Act, 1961

Notes:
1)

Mr. Bineet Jha ceased to be the Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f January 20, 2017. Accordingly, the
details of remuneration furnished above are for the period April 1, 2016 to January 20, 2017.

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type
Section of
Brief
Details of
the
Description
Penalty /
Companies
Punishment/
Act
Compounding
fees imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
-

Authority
[RD / NCLT
/ COURT]

Appeal
made,
if any
(give
Details)

-

-

-

-

-

-

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF TATA SECURITIES LIMITED
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TATA SECURITIES LIMITED (the
“Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Statement of Profit and
Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting
and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial
control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and gives a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2017, and its profit and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent applicable that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act.
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.
g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
i.
The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.
ii.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts as at the March 31, 2017, for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

iii.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.

The Company has provided requisite disclosures in the financial statements as
regards its holding and dealings in Specified Bank Notes as defined in the
Notification S.O. 3407(E) dated the November 8, 2016 of the Ministry of
Finance, during the period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016.
Based on audit procedures performed and the representations provided to us by
the management we report that the disclosures are in accordance with the books
of account maintained by the Company and as produced to us by the
Management.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (the “Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W /W-100018)

MUMBAI, April 26, 2017

G. K. Subramaniam
Partner
(Membership No. 109839)

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TATA SECURITIES
LIMITED (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

G. K. Subramaniam
Partner
(Membership No.109839)
Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2017

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

(i)

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained
proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed
assets.
(b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance
with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical
verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and
explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
immovable properties of freehold or leasehold land and building and hence reporting under
clause (i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(ii)

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii) of the Order is
not applicable.

(iii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Act.
(iv)

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees under the
provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act and hence reporting under clause (iv) of the
Order is not applicable.

(v)

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposit during the year and no order in this respect has been
passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or the Reserve Bank of
India or any Court or any other Tribunals.

(vi)

To the best our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of
the Act, in respect of the services rendered by the Company.

(vii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, in
respect of statutory dues:
(a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Incometax, Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.
(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income-tax, Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, cess and other material statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.
(c) There are no dues of Income-tax and Service Tax as on March 31, 2017 on account of
disputes.

(viii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of borrowings to banks. The Company has not
taken any loans from banks and not taken any loans or borrowings from financial institutions
and government or has not issued any debentures.
(ix)

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause (ix) of the Order is not
applicable.

(x)

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi)

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable.
(xiii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company is in compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the Act, where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.
(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
(xv) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable.
(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W /W-100018)

MUMBAI, April 26, 2017

G. K. Subramaniam
Partner
(Membership No. 109839)
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 &25325$7(,1)250$7,21
7DWD 6HFXULWLHV /LPLWHG 76/  LV D ZKROO\ RZQHG VXEVLGLDU\ RI 7DWD &DSLWDO /LPLWHG 7KH &RPSDQ\ LV D
PHPEHU RI WKH %RPED\ 6WRFN ([FKDQJH /LPLWHG %6(  LQ WKH FDVK DQG GHULYDWLYHV VHJPHQW DQG RI
1DWLRQDO 6WRFN ([FKDQJH RI ,QGLD /LPLWHG 16(  LQ UHVSHFW RI FDSLWDO PDUNHW GHULYDWLYH FXUUHQF\
GHULYDWLYHDQGZKROHVDOHGHEWPDUNHWVHJPHQWV7KH&RPSDQ\LVDOVRD'HSRVLWRU\3DUWLFLSDQWRI&HQWUDO
'HSRVLWRU\6HUYLFHV ,QGLD /LPLWHG &'6/ DQGRI1DWLRQDO6HFXULWLHV'HSRVLWRU\/LPLWHG 16'/ 7KH
&RPSDQ\LVDOVRUHJLVWHUHGZLWK6(%,DV3RUWIROLR0DQDJHUDQGDVD0HUFKDQW%DQNHU

7KH&RPSDQ\LVDOVRHQJDJHGLQGLVWULEXWLRQRIPXWXDOIXQGXQLWVLQWKHFDSDFLW\RIDQ$0),UHJLVWHUHG
GLVWULEXWRU 7KH &RPSDQ\ KDV EHHQ HPSDQHOOHG ZLWK VHYHUDO $VVHW 0DQDJHPHQW &RPSDQLHV RSHUDWLQJ LQ
,QGLD7KHFRPSDQ\KDVHPHUJHGDVRQHRIWKHODUJHVWGLVWULEXWLRQKRXVHVLQWKHPXWXDOIXQGLQGXVWU\7KH
&RPSDQ\DOVRGLVWULEXWLQJSULPDU\PDUNHWSURGXFWVOLNH,32)32VDQGDOVRWKLUGSDUW\ILQDQFLDOSURGXFWV
OLNH%RQGVDQG)L[HG'HSRVLWV
 6,*1,),&$17$&&2817,1*32/,&,(6
L

%DVLVRISUHSDUDWLRQRIILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
7KHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\KDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKH*HQHUDOO\$FFHSWHG
$FFRXQWLQJ3ULQFLSOHVLQ,QGLD ,QGLDQ*$$3 WRFRPSO\ZLWKWKH$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGVVSHFLILHGXQGHU
6HFWLRQ  RI WKH &RPSDQLHV $FW  UHDG ZLWK UHOHYDQW UXOHV LVVXHG WKHUHXQGHU DQG WKH UHOHYDQW
SURYLVLRQV RI WKH &RPSDQLHV $FW  WKH  $FW   DV DSSOLFDEOH 7KH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV KDYH
EHHQSUHSDUHGRQDFFUXDOEDVLV XQGHUWKH KLVWRULFDOFRVWFRQYHQWLRQ7KHDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVDGRSWHGLQ
WKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDUHFRQVLVWHQWZLWKWKRVHIROORZHGLQWKHSUHYLRXV\HDU

LL  8VHRIHVWLPDWHV
7KHSUHSDUDWLRQRIWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQFRQIRUPLW\ZLWK,QGLDQ*$$3UHTXLUHVWKH0DQDJHPHQWWR
PDNH HVWLPDWHV DQG DVVXPSWLRQV FRQVLGHUHG LQ WKH UHSRUWHG DPRXQWV RI DVVHWV DQG OLDELOLWLHV LQFOXGLQJ
FRQWLQJHQWOLDELOLWLHV DQGWKHUHSRUWHGLQFRPHDQGH[SHQVHVGXULQJWKH\HDU7KH0DQDJHPHQWEHOLHYHV
WKDW WKH HVWLPDWHV XVHG LQ SUHSDUDWLRQ RI WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DUH SUXGHQW DQG UHDVRQDEOH )XWXUH
UHVXOWVFRXOGGLIIHUGXHWRWKHVHHVWLPDWHVDQGWKHGLIIHUHQFHVEHWZHHQWKHDFWXDOUHVXOWVDQGWKHHVWLPDWHV
DUHUHFRJQLVHGLQWKHSHULRGVLQZKLFKWKHUHVXOWVDUHNQRZQPDWHULDOLVH
LLL  )L[HG$VVHWVDQG'HSUHFLDWLRQ$PRUWLVDWLRQ
D 7DQJLEOHIL[HGDVVHWVDQGGHSUHFLDWLRQ
7DQJLEOH IL[HG DVVHWV DFTXLUHG E\ WKH &RPSDQ\ DUH UHSRUWHG DW DFTXLVLWLRQ FRVW ZLWK GHGXFWLRQV IRU
DFFXPXODWHGGHSUHFLDWLRQDQGLPSDLUPHQWORVVHVLIDQ\
7KH DFTXLVLWLRQ YDOXH LQFOXGHV WKH SXUFKDVH SULFH H[FOXGLQJ UHIXQGDEOH WD[HV  DQG H[SHQVHV GLUHFWO\
DWWULEXWDEOHWRWKHDVVHWWREULQJLWWRWKHVLWHDQGLQWKHZRUNLQJFRQGLWLRQIRULWVLQWHQGHGXVH
'HSUHFLDWLRQRQWDQJLEOHIL[HGDVVHWVKDVEHHQSURYLGHGRQWKHVWUDLJKWOLQHPHWKRGDVSHUWKHXVHIXOOLIH
SUHVFULEHGLQ6FKHGXOH,,WRWKH&RPSDQLHV$FWH[FHSWLQUHVSHFWRI0RWRUFDUDQG0RELOHKDQGVHWV
LQ ZKRVH FDVH WKH OLIH RI WKH DVVHWV KDV EHHQ DVVHVVHG DV XQGHU EDVHG RQ WKH QDWXUH RI WKH DVVHW WKH
HVWLPDWHGXVDJHRIWKHDVVHWWKHRSHUDWLQJFRQGLWLRQVRIWKHDVVHWSDVWKLVWRU\RIUHSODFHPHQW
7KHIROORZLQJWDEOHVHWVRXWWKHHVWLPDWHGXVHIXOOLYHVE\WKH&RPSDQ\

$VVHW7\SH

0RWRUFDU

0RELOH+DQGVHW

2IILFHHTXLSPHQW

)XUQLWXUHDQGIL[WXUHV
&RPSXWHUHTXLSPHQW

(VWLPDWHGXVHIXOOLIH

$VSHU6FKHGXOH,,

<HDUV
:ULWWHQRIILQWKH\HDURISXUFKDVH
<HDUV
<HDUV
<HDUV

<HDUV
<HDUV
<HDUV
<HDUV
<HDUV


/HDVHKROGLPSURYHPHQWVDUHFDSLWDOLVHGDQGGHSUHFLDWHGXVLQJWKHVWUDLJKWOLQHPHWKRGRYHUWKHSULPDU\
SHULRGRIOHDVHXQOHVVWKHFRUUHVSRQGLQJOLIHXQGHU6FKHGXOH,,DUHKLJKHU
$VVHWVLQGLYLGXDOO\FRVWLQJOHVVWKDQ5VDUHIXOO\GHSUHFLDWHGLQWKH\HDURISXUFKDVH



E  ,QWDQJLEOHDVVHWVDQGDPRUWLVDWLRQ
,QWDQJLEOHDVVHWVDUHYDOXHGDWFRVWOHVVDPRUWLVDWLRQ,QWDQJLEOHDVVHWVDUHUHSRUWHGDWDFTXLVLWLRQYDOXH
ZLWKGHGXFWLRQVIRUDFFXPXODWHGDPRUWLVDWLRQDQGLPSDLUPHQWORVVHVLIDQ\
,QWDQJLEOHDVVHWVDUHDPRUWLVHGRQDVWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVRYHUWKHDVVHW¶VDQWLFLSDWHGXVHIXOOLIHHVWLPDWHGE\
PDQDJHPHQW
$QLPSDLUPHQWWHVWRILQWDQJLEOHDVVHWVLVFRQGXFWHGDQQXDOO\RUPRUHRIWHQLIWKHUHLVDQLQGLFDWLRQRID
GHFUHDVHLQYDOXH7KHLPSDLUPHQWORVVLIDQ\LVUHSRUWHGLQWKH6WDWHPHQWRI3URILWDQG/RVV
,QWDQJLEOH DVVHWV FRPSULVH RI 7UDGLQJ 5LJKWV LQ %6( /LPLWHG ³%6(/ 5LJKWV´  DQG SXUFKDVHG VRIWZDUH
OLFHQVHV7KHVHDUHDPRUWLVHGDVXQGHU
D  7KHFRVWRI%6(/5LJKWVKDVDOUHDG\EHHQDPRUWLVHG
E  &RVWVRIVRIWZDUHOLFHQVHVDPRUWLVHGHYHQO\RYHUDSHULRGRIIRXU\HDUVXQOHVVWKHOLFHQVHVDUHH[SHFWHG
WREHXVHGIRUVKRUWHUSHULRGLQ ZKLFKFDVHVXFKFRVWVDUHDPRUWLVHGRYHUDVKRUWHUSHULRG([SHQVHVRQ
VRIWZDUHVXSSRUWDQGPDLQWHQDQFHDUHFKDUJHGWR6WDWHPHQWRI3URILWDQG/RVVGXULQJWKHSHULRGLQZKLFK
VXFKFRVWVDUHLQFXUUHG
LY  ,PSDLUPHQWRIDVVHWV
7KHFDUU\LQJYDOXHVRIDVVHWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\¶VFDVKJHQHUDWLQJXQLWVDWHDFK%DODQFH6KHHWDUHUHYLHZHG
IRULPSDLUPHQWDWHDFKEDODQFHVKHHWGDWH,IDQ\LQGLFDWLRQ IRUVXFKLPSDLUPHQWH[LVWVWKHUHFRYHUDEOH
DPRXQWVRIWKRVHDVVHWVDUHHVWLPDWHGDQGLPSDLUPHQWORVVLVUHFRJQLVHGLIWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKRVH
DVVHWV H[FHHGV WKHLU UHFRYHUDEOH DPRXQW  7KH UHFRYHUDEOH DPRXQW LV WKH JUHDWHU RI WKH QHW VHOOLQJ SULFH
DQGWKHLUYDOXHLQXVH9DOXHLQXVHLVDUULYHGDWE\GLVFRXQWLQJWKHHVWLPDWHGIXWXUHFDVKIORZVWRWKHLU
SUHVHQWYDOXHEDVHGRQDSSURSULDWHGLVFRXQWLQJIDFWRU
Y  ,QYHVWPHQWVDQGLQYHVWPHQWLQFRPH
/RQJ WHUP LQYHVWPHQWV DUH FDUULHG DW FRVW OHVV SURYLVLRQ IRU GLPLQXWLRQ LQ YDOXH WKDW LV RWKHU WKDQ
WHPSRUDU\LIDQ\&XUUHQWLQYHVWPHQWVDUHVWDWHGDWFRVWRUPDUNHWYDOXHZKLFKHYHULVORZHU&RVWLQFOXGHV
WKHSXUFKDVHDQGUHODWHGH[SHQVHVVXFKDVEURNHUDJHDQGVWDPSGXWLHV7KHGLIIHUHQFHEHWZHHQFRVWDQG
UHGHPSWLRQ VDOH SURFHHGV QHW RI H[SHQVHV LV UHFRJQLVHG LQ WKH 6WDWHPHQW RI 3URILW DQG /RVV )RU
FDOFXODWLRQ RI SURILW  ORVV RQ LQYHVWPHQW FRVW LV FDOFXODWHG XVLQJ ZHLJKWHG DYHUDJH PHWKRG 'LYLGHQG
LQFRPHLVDFFRXQWHGZKHQWKHULJKWWRUHFHLYHWKHLQFRPHLVHVWDEOLVKHG
YL  5HYHQXH5HFRJQLWLRQ
5HYHQXHVDUHUHFRJQLVHGDIWHUWKHVHUYLFHVDUHUHQGHUHGSURYLGHGWKHUHDUHQRVLJQLILFDQWXQFHUWDLQWLHVDV
WRUHFRYHU\RIVXFKDPRXQWVDWWKHWLPHRISHUIRUPDQFH
D%URNHUDJH,QFRPH
%URNHUDJHIURPGLVWULEXWLRQRIILQDQFLDOSURGXFWVLVHDUQHGDVXQGHU
x 8SIURQWEURNHUDJHHDUQHGIURPGLVWULEXWLRQRIILQDQFLDOSURGXFWVWRLQYHVWRUV
x $QQXDOLVHGEURNHUDJHRQWKHEDVLVRIWKHDYHUDJHDVVHWVKHOGE\WKHLQYHVWRUDQG
%URNHUDJHDOVRLQFOXGHVDGGLWLRQDOIHHVIRUPDUNHWLQJDQGSURPRWLRQRIILQDQFLDOSURGXFWV
%URNHUDJH UHYHQXHV DUH EDVHG ODUJHO\ RQ SUHGHILQHG UDWHV DQG WKH DPRXQWV LQYHVWHG 5HYHQXH IURP
XSIURQWEURNHUDJHLVUHFRJQLVHGZKHQWKHVHUYLFHLVUHQGHUHG$QQXDOL]HGEURNHUDJHLVUHFRJQL]HGDWWKH
HQGRIWKHPHDVXUHPHQWSHULRGZKHQWKHSUHGHILQHGWKUHVKROGVDUHPHW5HYHQXHLVQHWRIWD[HVDQGVXE
EURNHUDJH
,QFRPH IURP HTXLW\ EURNLQJ EXVLQHVV LV UHFRJQLVHG RQ WKH WUDGH GDWH EDVLV DV WKH VHFXULWLHV WUDQVDFWLRQ
RFFXU DQG LV H[FOXVLYH RI VHUYLFH WD[ VHFXULWLHV WUDQVDFWLRQ WD[ VWDPS GXWLHV DQG RWKHU OHYLHV E\ VWRFN
H[FKDQJHVDQG6HFXULWLHVDQG([FKDQJH%RDUGRI,QGLD ³6(%,´ 
)HHVIRUVXEVFULSWLRQEDVHGVHUYLFHVDUHUHFHLYHGSHULRGLFDOO\EXWDUHUHFRJQL]HGDVHDUQHGRQDSURUDWD
EDVLVRYHUWKHWHUPRIWKHFRQWUDFW
E ,QYHVWPHQWEDQNLQJVHUYLFHV
)HHVIRU,QYHVWPHQWEDQNLQJVHUYLFHVDUHDFFRXQWHGEDVHGRQVWDJHRIFRPSOHWLRQRIDVVLJQPHQWVZKHQ
WKHUHLVUHDVRQDEOHFHUWDLQW\RILWVXOWLPDWHUHDOL]DWLRQFROOHFWLRQ
F0DUJLQ7UDGLQJ
0DUJLQ WUDGLQJ LV D SURGXFW RIIHUHG WR 7DWD 6HFXULWLHV /LPLWHG FOLHQWV LQ &DVK 6HJPHQW ZLWKLQ WKH
IUDPHZRUNODLGGRZQE\6(%,*XLGHOLQHVZKHUHLQDFOLHQWFDQJHWILQDQFHWREX\VWRFNV:LWK0DUJLQ
WUDGLQJFOLHQWFDQJHWXSWRRIWKHYDOXHRIWKHVWRFNVIRUDPD[LPXPWHQXUHRIGD\V,QWHUHVWLV
FKDUJHGWRFOLHQWVDQGWKHVDPHLVUHFRJQLVHGDV,QWHUHVWLQFRPHRQ0DUJLQ7UDGLQJRQDWLPHSURSRUWLRQ
EDVLVWDNLQJLQWRDFFRXQWWKHDPRXQWRXWVWDQGLQJDQGWKHUDWHDSSOLFDEOH
G'LYLGHQG,QFRPH
'LYLGHQGLQFRPHLVUHFRJQLVHGZKHQULJKWWRUHFHLYHWKHGLYLGHQGLVHVWDEOLVKHG
H,QWHUHVW,QFRPH

,QWHUHVWLQFRPHLVUHFRJQLVHGRQWLPHSURSRUWLRQEDVLVWDNLQJLQWRDFFRXQWWKHDPRXQWRXWVWDQGLQJDQGWKH
UDWHDSSOLFDEOH
YLL  (PSOR\HH%HQHILWV
(PSOR\HH EHQHILWV LQFOXGH SURYLGHQW IXQG VXSHUDQQXDWLRQ IXQG HPSOR\HH IXQG LQVXUDQFH VFKHPH
JUDWXLW\IXQGFRPSHQVDWHGDEVHQFHVDQGORQJWHUPVHUYLFHDZDUGV
D  'HILQHGFRQWULEXWLRQSODQV
7KHHOLJLEOHHPSOR\HHRIWKH&RPSDQ\DUHHQWLWOHGWRUHFHLYHEHQHILWVXQGHUWKHSURYLGHQWIXQGDGHILQHG
FRQWULEXWLRQSODQLQ ZKLFKERWKHPSOR\HHVDQGWKH&RPSDQ\ PDNH PRQWKO\FRQWULEXWLRQDWDVSHFLILHG
SHUFHQWDJHRIWKHFRYHUHGHPSOR\HHV¶VDODU\ FXUUHQWO\RIHPSOR\HHV¶VDODU\ ZKLFKLVUHFRJQLVHGDV
DQ H[SHQVH LQ WKH 6WDWHPHQW RI 3URILW DQG /RVV GXULQJ WKH \HDU 3URYLGHQW IXQG LV DGPLQLVWHUHG E\ WKH
5HJLRQDO3URYLGHQW)XQG&RPPLVVLRQHU7KH&RPSDQ\ VFRQWULEXWLRQWRSURYLGHQWIXQGVXSHUDQQXDWLRQ
IXQGDQGHPSOR\HHVWDWHLQVXUDQFHVFKHPHDUHFRQVLGHUHGDVGHILQHGFRQWULEXWLRQSODQVDQGDUHFKDUJHGDV
DQH[SHQVHEDVHGRQWKHDPRXQWRIFRQWULEXWLRQUHTXLUHGWREHPDGHDQGZKHQVHUYLFHVDUHUHQGHUHGE\
WKHHPSOR\HHV
E  'HILQHGEHQHILWSODQV
)RUGHILQHGEHQHILWSODQVLQWKHIRUPRIJUDWXLW\IXQGWKHFRVWRISURYLGLQJEHQHILWVLVGHWHUPLQHGXVLQJ
WKH3URMHFWHG8QLW&UHGLWPHWKRGZLWKDFWXDULDOYDOXDWLRQVEHLQJFDUULHGRXWDWHDFKEDODQFHVKHHWGDWH
$FWXDULDOJDLQVDQGORVVHVDUHUHFRJQLVHGLQWKH6WDWHPHQWRI3URILWDQG/RVVLQWKHSHULRGLQZKLFKWKH\
RFFXU 3DVW VHUYLFH FRVW LV UHFRJQLVHG LPPHGLDWHO\WR WKH H[WHQW WKDW WKH EHQHILWV DUH DOUHDG\ YHVWHGDQG
RWKHUZLVHLVDPRUWLVHGRQDVWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVRYHUWKHDYHUDJHSHULRGXQWLOWKHEHQHILWVEHFRPHYHVWHG
7KH UHWLUHPHQW EHQHILW REOLJDWLRQ UHFRJQLVHG LQ WKH %DODQFH 6KHHW UHSUHVHQWV WKH SUHVHQW YDOXH RI WKH
GHILQHGEHQHILWREOLJDWLRQDVDGMXVWHGIRUXQUHFRJQLVHGSDVWVHUYLFHFRVWDVUHGXFHGE\WKHIDLUYDOXHRI
VFKHPH DVVHWV $Q\ DVVHW UHVXOWLQJ IURP WKLV FDOFXODWLRQ LV OLPLWHG WR SDVW VHUYLFH FRVW SOXV WKH SUHVHQW
YDOXHRIDYDLODEOHUHIXQGVDQGUHGXFWLRQVLQIXWXUHFRQWULEXWLRQVWRWKHVFKHPHV
F  6KRUWWHUPHPSOR\HHEHQHILWV
7KH XQGLVFRXQWHG DPRXQW RI VKRUWWHUP HPSOR\HH EHQHILWV H[SHFWHG WR EH SDLG LQ H[FKDQJH IRU WKH
VHUYLFHV UHQGHUHG E\ HPSOR\HHV DUH UHFRJQLVHG GXULQJ WKH \HDU ZKHQ WKH HPSOR\HHV UHQGHU WKH VHUYLFH
7KHVH EHQHILWV LQFOXGH SHUIRUPDQFH LQFHQWLYH DQG FRPSHQVDWHG DEVHQFHV ZKLFK DUH H[SHFWHG WR RFFXU
ZLWKLQWZHOYHPRQWKVDIWHUWKHHQGRIWKHSHULRGLQZKLFKWKHHPSOR\HHUHQGHUVWKHUHODWHGVHUYLFH
7KHFRVWRIVKRUWWHUPFRPSHQVDWHGDEVHQFHVLVDFFRXQWHGDVXQGHU
L LQFDVHRIDFFXPXODWHGFRPSHQVDWHGDEVHQFHVZKHQHPSOR\HHVUHQGHUWKHVHUYLFHVWKDWLQFUHDVHWKHLU
HQWLWOHPHQWRIIXWXUHFRPSHQVDWHGDEVHQFHVDQG
LL LQFDVHRIQRQDFFXPXODWLQJFRPSHQVDWHGDEVHQFHVZKHQWKHDEVHQFHVRFFXU
G  /RQJWHUPHPSOR\HHEHQHILWV
&RPSHQVDWHGDEVHQFHVZKLFKDUHQRWH[SHFWHGWRRFFXUZLWKLQWZHOYHPRQWKVDIWHUWKHHQGRIWKHSHULRG
LQZKLFKWKHHPSOR\HHUHQGHUVWKHUHODWHGVHUYLFHDUHUHFRJQLVHGDVDOLDELOLW\DWWKHSUHVHQWYDOXHRIWKH
GHILQHGEHQHILWREOLJDWLRQDVDWWKHEDODQFHVKHHWGDWHOHVVWKHIDLUYDOXHRIWKHSODQDVVHWVRXWRIZKLFKWKH
REOLJDWLRQV DUH H[SHFWHG WR EH VHWWOHG /RQJ 7HUP 6HUYLFH $ZDUGV DUH UHFRJQLVHG DV D OLDELOLW\ DW WKH
SUHVHQWYDOXHRIWKHGHILQHGEHQHILWREOLJDWLRQDVDWWKHEDODQFHVKHHWGDWH
YLLL 7D[HVRQ,QFRPH
&XUUHQWWD[LVWKHDPRXQWRIWD[SD\DEOHRQWKHWD[DEOHLQFRPHIRUWKH\HDUDVGHWHUPLQHGLQDFFRUGDQFH
ZLWK WKH DSSOLFDEOH WD[ UDWHV DQG WKH SURYLVLRQV RI WKH ,QFRPH 7D[ $FW  DQG RWKHU DSSOLFDEOH WD[
ODZV
0LQLPXP $OWHUQDWH 7D[ 0$7  SDLG LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK WKH WD[ ODZV ZKLFK JLYHV IXWXUH HFRQRPLF
EHQHILWV LQ WKH IRUP RI DGMXVWPHQW WR IXWXUH LQFRPH WD[ OLDELOLW\ LV FRQVLGHUHG DV DQ DVVHW LI WKHUH LV
FRQYLQFLQJHYLGHQFHWKDWWKH&RPSDQ\ZLOOSD\QRUPDOLQFRPHWD[$FFRUGLQJO\0$7LVUHFRJQLVHGDV
DQDVVHWLQWKH%DODQFH6KHHW ZKHQLWLV KLJKO\SUREDEOHWKDW IXWXUHHFRQRPLFEHQHILWDVVRFLDWHG ZLWKLW
ZLOOIORZWRWKH&RPSDQ\
'HIHUUHGWD[LVUHFRJQLVHGRQWLPLQJGLIIHUHQFHVEHLQJWKHGLIIHUHQFHVEHWZHHQWKH WD[DEOHLQFRPHDQG
WKHDFFRXQWLQJLQFRPHWKDWRULJLQDWHLQRQHSHULRGDQGDUHFDSDEOHRIUHYHUVDOLQRQHRUPRUHVXEVHTXHQW
SHULRGV'HIHUUHGWD[LVPHDVXUHGXVLQJWKHWD[UDWHVDQGWKHWD[ODZVHQDFWHGRUVXEVWDQWLYHO\HQDFWHGDV
DWWKHUHSRUWLQJGDWH'HIHUUHGWD[OLDELOLWLHVDUHUHFRJQLVHGIRUDOOWLPLQJGLIIHUHQFHV'HIHUUHGWD[DVVHWV
DUHUHFRJQLVHGIRUWLPLQJGLIIHUHQFHVRILWHPVRWKHUWKDQXQDEVRUEHGGHSUHFLDWLRQDQGFDUU\IRUZDUGORVVHV
RQO\ WR WKH H[WHQW WKDW UHDVRQDEOH FHUWDLQW\ H[LVWV WKDW VXIILFLHQW IXWXUH WD[DEOH LQFRPH ZLOO EH DYDLODEOH
DJDLQVW ZKLFK WKHVH FDQ EH UHDOLVHG +RZHYHU LI WKHUH LV XQDEVRUEHG GHSUHFLDWLRQ DQG FDUU\ IRUZDUG RI
ORVVHV DQG LWHPV UHODWLQJ WR FDSLWDO ORVVHV GHIHUUHG WD[ DVVHWV DUH UHFRJQLVHG RQO\ LI WKHUH LV YLUWXDO
FHUWDLQW\VXSSRUWHGE\FRQYLQFLQJHYLGHQFHWKDWWKHUHZLOOEHVXIILFLHQWIXWXUHWD[DEOHLQFRPHDYDLODEOHWR
UHDOLVHWKHDVVHWV'HIHUUHGWD[DVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVDUHRIIVHWLIVXFKLWHPVUHODWHWRWD[HVRQLQFRPHOHYLHG

E\WKHVDPHJRYHUQLQJWD[ODZVDQGWKH&RPSDQ\KDVDOHJDOO\HQIRUFHDEOHULJKWIRUVXFKVHWRII'HIHUUHG
WD[DVVHWVDUHUHYLHZHGDWHDFKEDODQFHVKHHWGDWHIRUWKHLUUHDOLVDELOLW\
&XUUHQWDQGGHIHUUHGWD[UHODWLQJWRLWHPVGLUHFWO\UHFRJQLVHGLQUHVHUYHVLVUHFRJQLVHGLQUHVHUYHVDQGQRW
LQWKH6WDWHPHQWRI3URILWDQG/RVV
L[  3URYLVLRQV&RQWLQJHQW/LDELOLWLHVDQG&RQWLQJHQW$VVHWV

$SURYLVLRQLVUHFRJQLVHGZKHQWKH&RPSDQ\KDVDSUHVHQWREOLJDWLRQDVDUHVXOWRISDVWHYHQWDQGLWLV
SUREDEOHWKDWDQRXWIORZRIUHVRXUFHVZLOOEHUHTXLUHGWRVHWWOHWKHREOLJDWLRQLQUHVSHFWRIZKLFKUHOLDEOH
HVWLPDWHFDQEHPDGH3URYLVLRQV H[FOXGLQJUHWLUHPHQWEHQHILWV DUHQRWGLVFRXQWHGWRLWVSUHVHQWYDOXH
DQGDUHGHWHUPLQHGEDVHGRQEHVWHVWLPDWHUHTXLUHGWRVHWWOHWKHREOLJDWLRQDWWKHEDODQFHVKHHWGDWH7KHVH
DUH UHYLHZHG DW HDFK EDODQFH VKHHW GDWH DQG DGMXVWHG WR UHIOHFW WKH FXUUHQW EHVW HVWLPDWHV  &RQWLQJHQW
OLDELOLWLHV DUH QRW UHFRJQLVHG LQ WKH ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV $ FRQWLQJHQW DVVHW LV QHLWKHU UHFRJQLVHG QRU
GLVFORVHGLQWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
[  6HJPHQW5HSRUWLQJ
7KHDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVDGRSWHGIRUVHJPHQWUHSRUWLQJDUHLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHDFFRXQWLQJSROLF\RIWKH
&RPSDQ\6HJPHQW5HYHQXH6HJPHQW([SHQVHV6HJPHQW$VVHWVDQG6HJPHQW/LDELOLWLHVDUHLGHQWLILHG
WR VHJPHQWV RQ WKH EDVLV RI WKHLU UHODWLRQVKLS WR WKH RSHUDWLQJ DFWLYLWLHV RI WKH VHJPHQW 5HYHQXH
H[SHQVHVDVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVZKLFKUHODWHWRWKH&RPSDQ\DVDZKROHDQGDUHQRWDOORFDEOHWRVHJPHQWV
RQUHDVRQDEOHEDVLVDUHLQFOXGHGXQGHUµµ8QDOORFDWHG5HYHQXH([SHQVHV$VVHWV/LDELOLWLHV¶¶
[L  &DVKDQG&DVK(TXLYDOHQWV
&DVK DQG EDQN EDODQFHV DQG FXUUHQW LQYHVWPHQWV WKDW KDYH LQVLJQLILFDQW ULVN RI FKDQJH LQ YDOXH DQG
RULJLQDOGXUDWLRQRIXSWRWKUHHPRQWKVDUHLQFOXGHGLQWKH&RPSDQ\¶VFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVLQWKH
&DVK)ORZ6WDWHPHQW
[LL  (DUQLQJVSHU6KDUH
%DVLFHDUQLQJVSHUVKDUHLVFRPSXWHGE\GLYLGLQJWKHSURILW ORVV DIWHUWD[ LQFOXGLQJWKHSRVWWD[HIIHFW
RI H[WUDRUGLQDU\ LWHPV LI DQ\  E\ WKH ZHLJKWHG DYHUDJH QXPEHU RI HTXLW\ VKDUHV RXWVWDQGLQJ GXULQJ WKH
\HDU
'LOXWHG HDUQLQJV SHU VKDUH LV FRPSXWHG E\ GLYLGLQJ  WKH SURILW  ORVV  DIWHU WD[ LQFOXGLQJ WKH SRVW WD[
HIIHFW RI H[WUDRUGLQDU\ LWHPV LI DQ\  DV DGMXVWHG IRU GLYLGHQG LQWHUHVW DQG RWKHU FKDUJHV WR H[SHQVH RU
LQFRPH QHW RI DQ\ DWWULEXWDEOH WD[HV  UHODWLQJ WR WKH GLOXWLYH SRWHQWLDO HTXLW\ VKDUHV E\ WKH ZHLJKWHG
DYHUDJH QXPEHU RI HTXLW\ VKDUHV FRQVLGHUHG IRU GHULYLQJ EDVLF HDUQLQJV SHU VKDUH DQG WKH ZHLJKWHG
DYHUDJHQXPEHURIHTXLW\VKDUHVZKLFKFRXOGKDYHEHHQLVVXHGRQWKHFRQYHUVLRQRIDOOGLOXWLYHSRWHQWLDO
HTXLW\VKDUHV
[LLL /HDVHV
/HDVHV DUH FODVVLILHG DV ILQDQFH OHDVH ZKHUH WKH WHUPV RI WKH OHDVH WUDQVIHU VXEVWDQWLDOO\ DOO ULVNV DQG
UHZDUGVRIRZQHUVKLSWROHVVHH)L[HGDVVHWVDFTXLUHGXQGHUILQDQFHOHDVHDUHFDSLWDOLVHGDWWKHLQFHSWLRQ
RIWKHOHDVHDWWKHORZHURIIDLUYDOXHDQGSUHVHQWYDOXHRIPLQLPXPOHDVHSD\PHQW/HDVHSD\PHQWVDUH
DSSRUWLRQHG EHWZHHQ RXWVWDQGLQJ OLDELOLW\ DQG ILQDQFH FKDUJHV 7KH ILQDQFH FKDUJHV DUH DOORFDWHG WR WKH
SHULRGVGXULQJWKHOHDVHWHUPVRDVWRREWDLQDFRQVWDQWSHULRGLFUDWHRILQWHUHVWRQWKHRXWVWDQGLQJOLDELOLW\
/HDVHV DUH FODVVLILHG DV RSHUDWLQJ OHDVH ZKHUH VLJQLILFDQW SRUWLRQ RI ULVNV DQG UHZDUG RI RZQHUVKLS RI
DVVHWV DFTXLUHG XQGHU OHDVH DUH UHWDLQHG E\ WKH OHVVRU /HDVH UHQWDOV IRU VXFK OHDVHV DUH FKDUJHG WR WKH
6WDWHPHQWRI3URILWDQG/RVVRQDVWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVRYHUWKHOHDVHWHUP
[LY )RUHLJQFXUUHQF\WUDQVDFWLRQDQGWUDQVODWLRQV
,QLWLDOUHFRJQLWLRQ
7UDQVDFWLRQV LQ IRUHLJQ FXUUHQFLHV HQWHUHG LQWR E\ WKH &RPSDQ\ DUH DFFRXQWHG DW WKH H[FKDQJH UDWHV
SUHYDLOLQJ RQ WKH GDWH RI WKH WUDQVDFWLRQ RU DW UDWHV WKDW FORVHO\ DSSUR[LPDWH WKH UDWH DW WKH GDWH RI WKH
WUDQVDFWLRQ

0HDVXUHPHQWDWWKH%DODQFH6KHHWGDWH
)RUHLJQFXUUHQF\ PRQHWDU\ LWHPVRIWKH&RPSDQ\RXWVWDQGLQJDWWKH%DODQFH6KHHWGDWHDUHUHVWDWHGDW
WKH\HDUHQGUDWHV1RQPRQHWDU\LWHPVRIWKH&RPSDQ\DUHFDUULHGDWKLVWRULFDOFRVW
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3$57,&8/$56

$87+25,6('
 3UHYLRXV\HDU (TXLW\6KDUHVRI5VHDFK
 3UHYLRXV\HDU 3UHIHUHQFH6KDUHVRI5VHDFK

,668('68%6&5,%('$1')8//<3$,'83
 3UHYLRXV\HDU (TXLW\6KDUHVRI5VHDFKIXOO\SDLGXS
 3UHYLRXV\HDU &RPSXOVRULO\&RQYHUWLEOH&XPXODWLYH3UHIHUHQFH6KDUHVRI5VHDFK

7RWDO

$VDW0DUFK


$VDW0DUFK


5VLQODNK

5VLQODNK























 D 5HFRQFLOLDWLRQRIQXPEHURIVKDUHVRXWVWDQGLQJ
3$57,&8/$56
2SHQLQJ6KDUH&DSLWDODVRQ$SULO
(TXLW\6KDUHV)DFH9DOXH5VIXOO\SDLGXS
&RPSXOVRULO\&RQYHUWLEOH&XPXODWLYH3UHIHUHQFH6KDUHVRI5VHDFK

1RRIVKDUHV

5VLQODNK







$GGLWLRQVGXULQJWKH\HDU





&ORVLQJ6KDUH&DSLWDODVRQ0DUFK
(TXLW\6KDUHV)DFH9DOXH5VIXOO\SDLGXS
&RPSXOVRULO\&RQYHUWLEOH&XPXODWLYH3UHIHUHQFH6KDUHVRI5VHDFK







$GGLWLRQVGXULQJWKH\HDU













&ORVLQJ6KDUH&DSLWDODVRQ0DUFK
(TXLW\6KDUHV)DFH9DOXH5VIXOO\SDLGXS
&RPSXOVRULO\&RQYHUWLEOH&XPXODWLYH3UHIHUHQFH6KDUHVRI5VHDFK

 E 7KH &RPSDQ\ LVVXHG  &RPSXOVRULO\ &RQYHUWLEOH &XPXODWLYH 3UHIHUHQFH 6KDUHV &&&36 WR 7DWD &DSLWDO /LPLWHG FDUU\LQJ GLYLGHQG DW WKH UDWH RI 
SHU DQQXP RI 5V  HDFK DW SDU RQ 0DUFK   FRQYHUWLEOH DW WKH HQG RI  \HDUV IURP WKH GDWH RI DOORWPHQW DW WKH IDLU YDOXH RI WKH HTXLW\ VKDUH DW WKH WLPH RI
FRQYHUVLRQ +RZHYHU WKH KROGHU RI &&&36 VKDOO KDYH DQ RSWLRQ WR JHW WKH &&&36 FRQYHUWHG LQWR (TXLW\ 6KDUHV RI WKH &RPSDQ\ DW DQ HDUOLHU GDWH EHIRUH WKH H[SLU\ RI WKH
DIRUHVDLGSHULRGRIILYH\HDUV
 F 7KHHQWLUHHTXLW\VKDUHFDSLWDODQGSUHIHUHQFHVKDUHFDSLWDORIWKH&RPSDQ\LVKHOGE\7DWD&DSLWDO/LPLWHG WKHKROGLQJFRPSDQ\ DQGLWVQRPLQHHV7DWD6RQV
/LPLWHGLVWKHXOWLPDWHKROGLQJFRPSDQ\

 G 5LJKWVSUHIHUHQFHVDQGUHVWULFWLRQVDWWDFKHGWRVKDUHV
(TXLW\ 6KDUHV 7KH &RPSDQ\ KDV HTXLW\ VKDUHV KDYLQJ D SDU YDOXH RI 5V SHU VKDUH (DFK VKDUHKROGHU LV HOLJLEOH IRU RQH YRWH SHU VKDUH KHOG 'LYLGHQG LI DQ\ SURSRVHG
E\ WKH %RDUG RI 'LUHFWRUV LV VXEMHFW WR WKH DSSURYDO RI WKH VKDUHKROGHUV LQ WKH HQVXLQJ $QQXDO *HQHUDO 0HHWLQJ H[FHSW LQ FDVH RI LQWHULP GLYLGHQG ,Q WKH HYHQW RI
OLTXLGDWLRQ WKH HTXLW\ VKDUHKROGHUV DUH HOLJLEOH WR UHFHLYH WKH UHPDLQLQJ DVVHWV RI WKH &RPSDQ\ DIWHU GLVWULEXWLRQ RI DOO SUHIHUHQWLDO DPRXQWV LQ SURSRUWLRQ WR WKHLU
VKDUHKROGLQJ
3UHIHUHQFH 6KDUHV 7KH FRPSDQ\ KDG LVVXHG &RPSXOVRULO\ &RQYHUWLEOH &XPXODWLYH 3UHIHUHQFH 6KDUHV &&&36 RI IDFH YDOXH 5V  HDFK DW SDU RQ 0DUFK  
KDYLQJ WHUPV RI LVVXDQFH GLVFORVHG LQ 1RWH  E DERYH 7KH &&&36 KROGHUV KDYH D ULJKW WR UHFHLYH GLYLGHQG SULRU WR (TXLW\ 6KDUHKROGHUV 7KH GLYLGHQG SURSRVHG E\ WKH
%RDUG RI 'LUHFWRUV RQ WKH &&&36 LV VXEMHFW WR WKH DSSURYDO RI WKH VKDUHKROGHUV DW WKH HQVXLQJ $QQXDO *HQHUDO 0HHWLQJ H[FHSW LQ WKH FDVH RI LQWHULP GLYLGHQG ,Q WKH HYHQW
RI OLTXLGDWLRQ WKH 3UHIHUHQFH 6KDUHKROGHUV DUH HOLJLEOH WR UHFHLYH WKH UHPDLQLQJ DVVHWV RI WKH &RPSDQ\ EHIRUH GLVWULEXWLRQ WR WKH (TXLW\ 6KDUHKROGHUV LQ SURSRUWLRQ WR WKHLU
VKDUHKROGLQJ
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3$57,&8/$56

$VDW0DUFK

5VLQODNK

$VDW0DUFK

5VLQODNK



























$VDW0DUFK


$VDW0DUFK


5VLQODNK

5VLQODNK







$VDW0DUFK


$VDW0DUFK


5VLQODNK

5VLQODNK

6HFXULW\3UHPLXP
$VSHUODVWEDODQFHVKHHW
$GG3UHPLXPUHFHLYHGGXULQJWKH\HDU
*HQHUDO5HVHUYH
$VSHUODVWEDODQFHVKHHW

'HILFLWLQ6WDWHPHQWRI3URILWDQG/RVV
$VSHUODVWEDODQFHVKHHW
$GG1HW3URILW /RVV IRUWKH\HDU


7RWDO
/21*7(503529,6,216

3$57,&8/$56

3URYLVLRQIRUUHWLUHPHQWDQGRWKHUHPSOR\HHEHQHILWV VHHQRWHVQRDQG
7RWDO

6+2577(50%2552:,1*6

3$57,&8/$56

/RDQVDQGDGYDQFHVIURPUHODWHGSDUWLHV
8QVHFXUHG
  ,QWHU&RUSRUDWH'HSRVLWVIURPWKH+ROGLQJ&RPSDQ\ 5HIHUIRRWQRWH
7RWDO
)RRWQRWH,QWHU&RUSRUDWH'HSRVLWVDUHUHSD\DEOHRQGHPDQG
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3$57,&8/$56

$VDW0DUFK


$VDW0DUFK


5VLQODNK

5VLQODNK














L 2WKHUV
D $FFUXHGHPSOR\HHEHQHILWH[SHQVHV
E $FFUXHGH[SHQVHV
F 2WKHUV
7RWDO

1RWH7KHLQIRUPDWLRQDVUHTXLUHGWREHGLVFORVHGXQGHUWKH0LFUR6PDOODQG0HGLXP(QWHUSULVHV'HYHORSPHQW$FWKDVEHHQGHWHUPLQHGWRWKHH[WHQWVXFKSDUWLHV
KDYHEHHQLGHQWLILHGRQWKHEDVLVRILQIRUPDWLRQDYDLODEOHZLWKWKH&RPSDQ\7KHDPRXQWRISULQFLSDODQGLQWHUHVWRXWVWDQGLQJGXULQJWKH\HDULVJLYHQEHORZ

3DUWLFXODUV

$VDW0DUFK


$VDW0DUFK


5VLQODNK

5VLQODNK

 D 3ULQFLSDODPRXQWDQGLQWHUHVWWKHUHRQUHPDLQLQJXQSDLGDWWKHHQGRI\HDU,QWHUHVWSDLGLQFOXGLQJ
SD\PHQWPDGHEH\RQGDSSRLQWHGGD\GXULQJWKH\HDU





 E ,QWHUHVWGXHDQGSD\DEOHIRUGHOD\GXULQJWKH\HDU





 F $PRXQWRILQWHUHVWDFFUXHGDQGXQSDLGDVDW\HDUHQG





 G 7KHDPRXQWRIIXUWKHULQWHUHVWGXHDQGSD\DEOHHYHQLQWKHVXFFHHGLQJ\HDU









7RWDO
27+(5&855(17/,$%,/,7,(6

3$57,&8/$56

D 2WKHUSD\DEOHV
 L 6WDWXWRU\'XHV
 LL ([FKDQJHVHWWOHPHQW'XHWRFOLHQWV
 LLL 0DUJLQPRQH\GXHWRFOLHQWV
 LY 2WKHUV
7RWDO

$VDW0DUFK


$VDW0DUFK


5VLQODNK

5VLQODNK















$VDW0DUFK


$VDW0DUFK


5VLQODNK

5VLQODNK
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3$57,&8/$56

D 3URYLVLRQIRUUHWLUHPHQWDQGRWKHUHPSOR\HHEHQHILWV
E 3URYLVLRQ2WKHUV
 L 3URYLVLRQIRUWD[ QHWRIDGYDQFHWD[5VODNKV3UHYLRXV\HDU5VODNKV
7RWDO

3UHYLRXV\HDUILJXUHVDUHJLYHQLQ,WDOLFV

7RWDO)L[HG$VVHWV

3UHYLRXV<HDU
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*URVV%ORFN
$GGLWLRQV
'LVSRVDOVGXULQJ
&ORVLQJ
GXULQJWKH\HDU
WKH\HDU
%DODQFHDVDW




 
 

 
  

   
   

   
    

   
   

2SHQLQJ
%DODQFHDVDW




 
 

 
 



7UDGLQJ5LJKWVLQ%6(/LPLWHG %6(/ 

,17$1*,%/( RWKHUWKDQLQWHUQDOO\JHQHUDWHG 

6XE7RWDO

0RWRU9HKLFOHV

)XUQLWXUHDQG)L[WXUHV

&RPSXWHU(TXLSPHQW

/HDVHKROG,PSURYHPHQWV

2IILFH(TXLSPHQW

7$1*,%/(

'HVFULSWLRQRI$VVHWV

)L[HG$VVHWV

  



 
  

 
  

 
  




 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  



 
  

 



 
 

 
 

 
  




 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 
  

 
  

 
  




 
 

 
  

 
  





   
    


   
    

'HSUHFLDWLRQ
2SHQLQJ 'HSUHFLDWLRQIRU 'HSUHFLDWLRQ
%DODQFHDVDW
WKH\HDU
RQGLVSRVDOV


 
  

 
  

 
  



 
  



 



 
 

 
 

 
 






  



 
  

 
  

 
  




   
    

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

&ORVLQJ
%DODQFHDVDW
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5VLQODNK
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,QYHVWPHQWVLQ0XWXDO)XQG 1RQ7UDGH
7DWD0RQH\0DUNHW)XQG5HJXODU3ODQ 8QTXRWHG
,QYHVWPHQWLQ(TXLW\6KDUHV 1RQ7UDGH
%6(/LPLWHG 4XRWHG 

1RRI8QLWV


7RWDO

 

1RQ&XUUHQW
,QYHVWPHQW
5VLQODNK

3DUWLFXODUV

&RVWRI4XRWHG,QYHVWPHQWV
%RRN9DOXHRI4XRWHGLQYHVWVPHQW
0DUNHWYDOXHRI4XRWHG,QYHVWPHQWV
%RRN9DOXHRI8QTXRWHG,QYHVWPHQWV
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5VLQODNK
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E 6HFXULW\'HSRVLWV
L :LWK([FKDQJHV
LL :LWK2WKHUV
/HVV3URYLVLRQIRUGRXEWIXO'HSRVLWV

 
 
 

F 2WKHUV
L 3UHSDLG([SHQVHV
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LLL /RDQWR7DWD&DSLWDO:HOIDUH7UXVW
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7RWDO
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3$57,&8/$56

D 2XWVWDQGLQJIRUDSHULRGH[FHHGLQJVL[PRQWKV
L 6HFXUHGFRQVLGHUHGJRRG
LL 8QVHFXUHGFRQVLGHUHGJRRG
LLL 'RXEWIXO
/HVV3URYLVLRQIRUGRXEWIXOWUDGHUHFHLYDEOHV
E 2WKHUV
L 6HFXUHGFRQVLGHUHGJRRG
LL 8QVHFXUHGFRQVLGHUHGJRRG
LLL 'RXEWIXO
/HVV3URYLVLRQIRUGRXEWIXOWUDGHUHFHLYDEOHV

7RWDO

$VDW0DUFK


$VDW0DUFK


5VLQODNK

5VLQODNK
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$VDW0DUFK


$VDW0DUFK


5VLQODNK

5VLQODNK


D &DVKRQKDQG
E %DODQFHZLWK%DQNV
 L LQ&XUUHQWDFFRXQW
 LL LQ&OLHQWDFFRXQW &XUUHQWDFFRXQW
 LLL LQ'HSRVLWDFFRXQW 5HIHUIRRWQRWHQREHORZ





 
 
 
7RWDO





)RRW1RWHV
 2IWKHDERYHWKHEDODQFHVWKDWPHHWWKHGHILQLWLRQRIFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVDVSHU$6&DVK)ORZ6WDWHPHQWLV5VODNK $VDW0DUFK5VODNK
 'HSRVLWVLQFOXGHVOLHQZLWK%DQNVDQG6WRFN([FKDQJHVDVPDUJLQDPRXQWLQJWR5VODNK $VDW0DUFK5VODNK 
 7KHGHWDLOVRIWKH6SHFLILF%DQN1RWHV 6%1 KHOGDQGWUDQVDFWHGGXULQJWKHSHULRGWRDUHDVEHORZ DVSHU0&$1RWLILFDWLRQ*65 ( 
GDWHGWK0DUFK
2WKHU
3$57,&8/$56
6%1V
'HQRPLQDWLRQ
7RWDO
1RWHV
2SHQLQJ&DVKLQKDQGDVRQ

 
 3HUPLWWHGUHFHLSWV

 
 3HUPLWWHGSD\PHQWV



 $PRXQWVGHSRVLWHGLQ%DQNV




&ORVLQJFDVKLQKDQGDVRQ
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D 3UHSDLG([SHQVHV
E $GYDQFHVUHFRYHUDEOHLQFDVKRUNLQG
F 6HFXULW\'HSRVLWVZLWK([FKDQJHV
G /RDQWR(PSOR\HHV
H 5HFHLYDEOHIURPUHODWHGSDUWLHV
7RWDO

$VDW0DUFK


$VDW0DUFK


5VLQODNK

5VLQODNK

















$VDW0DUFK


$VDW0DUFK


5VLQODNK

5VLQODNK
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27+(5&855(17$66(76

3$57,&8/$56

D ,QWHUHVW$FFUXHGEXWQRWGXHRQ)L[HG'HSRVLW
E ([FKDQJH6HWWOHPHQW'XHVIURP&OLHQW
F 'XHVIURP&OLHQW
/HVV3URYLVLRQIRUGRXEWIXOGHEWV
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)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG
0DUFK

3$57,&8/$56

)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG
0DUFK

5VLQODNK

5VLQODNK













% ,QFRPHIURP,QYHVWPHQW%DQNLQJVHUYLFHV





& 3ULYLOHJH)HHVDQG2WKHU,QFRPH









)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG
0DUFK

)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG
0DUFK

5VLQODNK

5VLQODNK

















)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG
0DUFK

)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG
0DUFK

5VLQODNK

5VLQODNK













,QFRPHIURPVHUYLFHV
$ %URNHUDJH,QFRPH
L 'LVWULEXWLRQ,QFRPH 1HWRIWD[HV
LL (TXLW\%URNHUDJH 1HWRIWD[HV

7RWDO
27+(5,1&20(

3$57,&8/$56



D ,QWHUHVW,QFRPHRQ)L[HG'HSRVLWV
E 'LYLGHQGIURP&XUUHQW,QYHVWPHQWV
F 0LVFHOODQHRXV,QFRPH
G ([FKDQJHJDLQ
H $GYHUWLVHPHQW,QFRPH
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3$57,&8/$56

D 6DODULHVZDJHVDQGERQXV
E &RQWULEXWLRQWRSURYLGHQWIXQGVXSHUDQQXDWLRQIXQGDQGRWKHUIXQGV
F 6WDIIZHOIDUHH[SHQVHV
7RWDO

),1$1&(&267

3$57,&8/$56

D ,QWHUHVWH[SHQVH
L ,QWHUHVWRQ,QWHU&RUSRUDWH'HSRVLW
LL ,QWHUHVWRQ%DQNRYHUGUDIW
E %DQN*XDUDQWHH&KDUJHV
7RWDO

)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG
0DUFK

)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG
0DUFK

5VLQODNK

5VLQODNK
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3$57,&8/$56

)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK
5VLQODNK

D 6XE%URNHUDJH
E $GPLQLVWUDWLRQDQG6XSSRUW([SHQVHV
F $GYHUWLVHPHQWDQG0DUNHWLQJ
G &RPPXQLFDWLRQH[SHQVHV
H 'LUHFWRU V6LWWLQJ)HHV
I ,QVXUDQFHFKDUJHV
J /HJDODQG3URIHVVLRQDOIHHV
K )UDQNLQJ&KDUJHV
L 3ULQWLQJDQGVWDWLRQHU\
M 3URYLVLRQIRU'RXEWIXO'HEWV
N 3URYLVLRQIRU'HSRVLWV
O 3RZHUDQGIXHO
P 5HSDLUVDQG0DLQWHQDQFH
L $0&&KDUJHV
LL 2WKHUV
Q 5HQW
R 5DWHVDQGWD[HV
S 6(%,7XUQRYHU)HHV
T 7UDLQLQJDQGUHFUXLWPHQW
U 0HPEHUVKLSDQG6XEVFULSWLRQ
V 7UDYHOOLQJDQGFRQYH\DQFH
W 6RIWZDUH([SHQVHV
X 2WKHUH[SHQVHV
7RWDO




5VLQODNK
























)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK
5VLQODNK




5VLQODNK
























2WKHUH[SHQVHVLQFOXGHV$XGLWRUV 5HPXQHUDWLRQ

$XGLWRUV 5HPXQHUDWLRQ

D 6WDWXWRU\$XGLW)HHV
E 7D[$XGLW)HHV
F 2WKHU6HUYLFHV
7RWDO

)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG
0DUFK

)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG
0DUFK

5VLQODNK





5VLQODNK





$ &RPPLWPHQWV
D  &RPPLWPHQWVDVDW0DUFK1LO 3UHYLRXV\HDU1LO 
% &RQWLQJHQWOLDELOLWLHV
7KH FRQWLQJHQW OLDELOLW\ DV DW 0DUFK   LV RQ DFFRXQW RI GLYLGHQG RQ  &RPSXOVRULO\
&RQYHUWLEOH &XPXODWLYH 3UHIHUHQFH 6KDUHV DQG GLYLGHQG GLVWULEXWLRQ WD[ WKHUHRQ DJJUHJDWLQJ WR 5V
ODNK 3UHYLRXV\HDU5VODNK 


'HIHUUHGWD[
7KH &RPSDQ\ KDV GHIHUUHG WD[ DVVHWV DULVLQJ RQ DFFRXQW RI EURXJKW IRUZDUG ORVVHV XQDEVRUEHG
GHSUHFLDWLRQ DQG WLPLQJ GLIIHUHQFHV LQ UHVSHFW RI GHSUHFLDWLRQ HPSOR\HH EHQHILWV DQG SURYLVLRQ IRU
GRXEWIXO GHEWV ZKLFK KDYH QRW EHHQ UHFRJQLVHG GXH WR DEVHQFH RI YLUWXDO FHUWDLQW\ EDFNHG E\
FRQYLQFLQJHYLGHQFHRIVXIILFLHQWIXWXUHWD[DEOHLQFRPHDJDLQVWZKLFKVXFKDVVHWVFRXOGEHRIIVHW



7KH&RPSDQ\DYDLOVIURPWLPHWRWLPHQRQFDQFHOODEOHORQJWHUPOHDVHVIRURIILFHSUHPLVHVLQFOXGLQJ
RIILFHIXUQLWXUH7KHWRWDORIIXWXUHPLQLPXPOHDVHSD\PHQWVWKDWWKH&RPSDQ\LVFRPPLWWHGWRPDNH
LV5V1LO 3UHYLRXV\HDU5V1LO 
7KHDPRXQWFKDUJHGWRZDUGVOHDVHUHQWDOV DVSDUWRIUHQWH[SHQGLWXUH LV5VODNK 3UHYLRXV\HDU
5VODNK 



(DUQLQJVSHUVKDUH
(DUQLQJVSHUVKDUHDUHFDOFXODWHGE\GLYLGLQJWKHSURILWDWWULEXWDEOHWRWKHHTXLW\VKDUHKROGHUVE\WKH
ZHLJKWHG DYHUDJH QXPEHU RI HTXLW\ VKDUHV RXWVWDQGLQJ GXULQJ WKH SHULRG 7KH QXPEHUV XVHG LQ
FDOFXODWLQJHDUQLQJVSHUVKDUHDUHDVVWDWHGEHORZ
3DUWLFXODUV
3URILW /RVV DIWHUWD[
/HVV3UHIHUHQFHGLYLGHQGSD\DEOHWR
FXPXODWLYHUHGHHPDEOHSUHIHUHQFH
VKDUHKROGHUV
3URILW /RVV DIWHUWD[IRUHTXLW\
VKDUHKROGHUV
:HLJKWHGDYHUDJHQXPEHURI(TXLW\VKDUHV
XVHGLQFRPSXWLQJ%DVLF(36
)DFHYDOXHRIHTXLW\VKDUHV
%DVLFHDUQLQJVSHUVKDUH
3URILW /RVV DIWHUWD[IRUHTXLW\
VKDUHKROGHUV
$GG3UHIHUHQFHGLYLGHQGSD\DEOHWR
FXPXODWLYHUHGHHPDEOHSUHIHUHQFH
VKDUHKROGHUV
3URILW /RVV DIWHUWD[GLOXWHG(36
:HLJKWHG$YHUDJH1XPEHURI(TXLW\
6KDUHVXVHGLQFRPSXWLQJ%DVLFHDUQLQJV
SHUVKDUH
:HLJKWHGDYHUDJHQXPEHURIVKDUHVLQ
FRPSXWLQJ'LOXWHGHDUQLQJVSHUVKDUH
)DFHYDOXHRIHTXLW\VKDUHV
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5XSHHV





'LOXWHGHDUQLQJVSHUVKDUH $QWL'LOXWLYH 

5XSHHV
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5HODWHG3DUW\'LVFORVXUHV
'LVFORVXUH DV UHTXLUHG E\ $FFRXQWLQJ 6WDQGDUG $6  ±  RQ ³5HODWHG 3DUW\ 'LVFORVXUHV´ GHWDLOHG
EHORZ

1DPHVRIWKHUHODWHGSDUWLHVDQGGHVFULSWLRQRIUHODWLRQVKLS
5HODWHG3DUW\ 



5HODWLRQVKLS
7DWD6RQV/LPLWHG



8OWLPDWH+ROGLQJ&RPSDQ\
7DWD&DSLWDO/LPLWHG



+ROGLQJ&RPSDQ\

6XEVLGLDULHVRI7DWD6RQV/LPLWHG ZLWKZKRPWKH&RPSDQ\KDVWUDQVDFWLRQV 
7DWD$,**HQHUDO,QVXUDQFH&R/LPLWHG
7DWD%XVLQHVV6XSSRUW6HUYLFHV/LPLWHG
7DWD&RQVXOWDQF\6HUYLFHV/LPLWHG
7DWD,QYHVWPHQW&RUSRUDWLRQ/LPLWHG
(ZDUW,QYHVWPHQWV/LPLWHG
7DWD+RXVLQJ'HYHORSPHQW&RPSDQ\/LPLWHG
6LPWR,QYHVWPHQW&RPSDQ\/LPLWHG
7DWD$,$/LIH,QVXUDQFH&RPSDQ\/LPLWHG
7DWD$XWRFRPS6\VWHPV/LPLWHG
7DWD7R\R5DGLDWRU/LPLWHG
7DWD,QGXVWULHV/LPLWHG
7DWD$VVHW0DQDJHPHQW/LPLWHG
7DWD7HOHVHUYLFHV 0DKDUDVKWUD /LPLWHG


6XEVLGLDULHVRI7DWD&DSLWDO/LPLWHG ZLWKZKRPWKH&RPSDQ\KDVWUDQVDFWLRQV 
7&7UDYHODQG6HUYLFHV/LPLWHG
7DWD&DSLWDO+RXVLQJ)LQDQFH/LPLWHG
7DWD&DSLWDO)RUH[/LPLWHG
7DWD&DSLWDO)LQDQFLDO6HUYLFHV/LPLWHG
7DWD&DSLWDO3/&
7DWD&DSLWDO0DUNHW3WH/LPLWHG
7DWD&OHDQWHFK&DSLWDO/LPLWHG


.H\0DQDJHPHQW3HUVRQQHO
0U6DQMHHW'DZDU±0DQDJHUDQG&225HWDLO(TXLW\%XVLQHVV 7UDQVIHUUHGWR7DWD&DSLWDO)LQDQFLDO
6HUYLFHV/WGZHIWK'HFHPEHU 




7KH&RPSDQ\¶VUHODWHGSDUW\EDODQFHVDQGWUDQVDFWLRQVDUHVXPPDULVHGDVIROORZV
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$  ([SHQGLWXUH
 5HQW
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%DODQFH3D\DEOH
%(%36XEVFULSWLRQ3D\DEOH
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7DWD&DSLWDO/LPLWHG








$  ([SHQGLWXUH

5HQW
(OHFWULFLW\&KDUJHV
,QWHUHVWRQ,QWHU&RUSRUDWH'HSRVLW
,QVXUDQFH([SHQVHV

6DODULHV:DJHVDQG%RQXV
%  ,QFRPH

6HUYLFHVSURYLGHG


&  ,QWHUFRUSRUDWHGHSRVLWWDNHQ


'  ,QWHUFRUSRUDWHGHSRVLWSDLG

(  %DODQFH3D\DEOH

,QWHU&RUSRUDWH'HSRVLW3D\DEOH

7UDGH3D\DEOH
7DWD&DSLWDO)LQDQFLDO
$  ([SHQGLWXUH
6HUYLFHV/LPLWHG
 5HQW

 (PSOR\HH&RVW
 3URIHVVLRQDODQG/HJDO)HHV
 *HQHUDO([SHQVHV
 
%  ,QFRPH
 (TXLW\%URNHUDJH,QFRPH
 6HUYLFHVSURYLGHG
 5HLPEXUVHPHQWRI5HQW([SHQVHV
 *HQHUDO([SHQVHV
 
&  $VVHW7UDQVIHUWR7&)6/
'  %DODQFH3D\DEOH
7UDGH3D\DEOH
7DWD$,**HQHUDO
$  ([SHQGLWXUH
,QVXUDQFH&R/LPLWHG
 ,QVXUDQFH([SHQVHV 


%  %DODQFH3D\DEOH
7DWD %XVLQHVV 6XSSRUW $  ([SHQGLWXUH
6HUYLFHV/LPLWHG
 $GPLQLVWUDWLRQDQG6XSSRUWH[SHQVHV

 3URIHVVLRQDODQG/HJDO)HHV

 
%  ,QFRPH
 5HLPEXUVHPHQWRI2XWRISRFNHW
 H[SHQVHV

 
&  %DODQFH5HFHLYDEOH
 2WKHU5HFHLYDEOH

'  %DODQFH3D\DEOH


 2XWVWDQGLQJ3D\DEOH
6LPWR,QYHVWPHQW
$  (TXLW\%URNHUDJH,QFRPH
&RPSDQ\/LPLWHG


7DWD&RQVXOWDQF\
6HUYLFHV/LPLWHG
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/LPLWHG
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/LPLWHG



7DWD$VVHW0DQDJHPHQW
/LPLWHG
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([SHQVHV
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,QFRPH
(TXLW\%URNHUDJH,QFRPH
$  ([SHQGLWXUH
7UDYHOOLQJDQG&RQYH\DQFH





  




%DODQFH3D\DEOH
2XWVWDQGLQJ3D\DEOH
)RUHLJQ([FKDQJH3XUFKDVHG

%DODQFH3D\DEOH
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,QFRPH
6HUYLFHVSURYLGHG

%DODQFH5HFHLYDEOH
,QFRPHIURPRSHUDWLRQV
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$  ,QFRPH
(TXLW\%URNHUDJH,QFRPH 











  










7DWD&OHDQWHFK&DSLWDO
/LPLWHG

$  5HLPEXUVHPHQWRIH[SHQVHV 





7DWD$,$/LIH,QVXUDQFH
&RPSDQ\/LPLWHG
7DWD7R\R5DGLDWRU
/LPLWHG
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1DWXUHRIWUDQVDFWLRQ




7DWD,QGXVWULHV/LPLWHG
7DWD&DSLWDO+RXVLQJ
)LQDQFH/LPLWHG



7DWD7HOHVHUYLFHV
0DKDUDVKWUD /LPLWHG




.H\0DQDJHPHQW
3HUVRQQHO

/HVVWKDQ5V 

,QVXUDQFH([SHQVHV

2WKHU,QFRPH
5HLPEXUVHPHQWRIRXWRISRFNHW
H[SHQVHV

%DODQFH5HFHLYDEOH
(TXLW\%URNHUDJH,QFRPH
5HLPEXUVHPHQWRIH[SHQVHV 

,QFRPH
6HUYLFHVSURYLGHG
$  ([SHQGLWXUH

&RQIHUHQFH%ULGJH3ODQ

0RELOH([SHQVHV

7HOHSKRQH([SHQVHV

'DWD&DUG([SHQVHV


%  %DODQFH3D\DEOH
$  5HPXQHUDWLRQWRNH\PDQDJHPHQW
SHUVRQQHO












 




















 
 



(PSOR\HH%HQHILW2EOLJDWLRQV
'HILQHG&RQWULEXWLRQ3ODQV
7KH&RPSDQ\RIIHUVLWVHPSOR\HHVGHILQHGFRQWULEXWLRQSODQLQWKHIRUPRISURYLGHQWIXQGIDPLO\SHQVLRQ
IXQG DQG VXSHUDQQXDWLRQ IXQG  3URYLGHQW IXQG DQG IDPLO\ SHQVLRQ IXQG FRYHU VXEVWDQWLDOO\ DOO UHJXODU
HPSOR\HHV ZKLOHWKHFRQWULEXWLRQWRVXSHUDQQXDWLRQ IXQGLVDWWKHRSWLRQRIWKH(PSOR\HH&RQWULEXWLRQV
DUHSDLGGXULQJWKH\HDULQWRDIXQGPDQDJHGE\LQGHSHQGHQWDJHQFLHV:KLOHERWKWKHHPSOR\HHVDQGWKH
&RPSDQ\ SD\ SUHGHWHUPLQHG FRQWULEXWLRQV LQWR WKH SURYLGHQW IXQG FRQWULEXWLRQV LQWR WKH IDPLO\ SHQVLRQ
IXQGDQGWKHVXSHUDQQXDWLRQIXQGDUHPDGHE\RQO\WKH&RPSDQ\7KHFRQWULEXWLRQVDUHEDVHGRQDFHUWDLQ
SURSRUWLRQRIWKHHPSOR\HH¶VVDODU\
7KH &RPSDQ\ UHFRJQLVHG D FKDUJH RI 5V  ODNK 3UHYLRXV \HDU 5V  ODNK  IRU 3URYLGHQW )XQG DQG
)DPLO\ 3HQVLRQ )XQG FRQWULEXWLRQ DQG 5V /DNK 3UHYLRXV \HDU 5V  ODNK  IRU 6XSHUDQQXDWLRQ
FRQWULEXWLRQLQWKH6WDWHPHQWRI3URILWDQG/RVV
'HILQHG±%HQHILWV3ODQV
7KH &RPSDQ\ RIIHUV LWV HPSOR\HHV GHILQHGEHQHILW SODQV LQ WKH IRUP RI D JUDWXLW\ VFKHPH D OXPS VXP
DPRXQW /RQJ7HUP6HUYLFHDZDUGDQGDVXSSOHPHQWDOSD\VFKHPH DOLIHORQJSHQVLRQ %HQHILWVXQGHU
WKHGHILQHGEHQHILWSODQVDUHW\SLFDOO\EDVHGHLWKHURQ \HDUVRIVHUYLFHDQGWKHHPSOR\HH¶VFRPSHQVDWLRQ
JHQHUDOO\ LPPHGLDWHO\ EHIRUH UHWLUHPHQW  7KH JUDWXLW\ VFKHPH DQG /RQJ 7HUP $ZDUGV 6FKHPH FRYHUV
VXEVWDQWLDOO\DOOUHJXODUHPSOR\HHVZKLOHVXSSOHPHQWDOSD\SODQFRYHUVFHUWDLQH[HFXWLYHV,QWKHFDVHRI
WKHJUDWXLW\VFKHPHWKH&RPSDQ\FRQWULEXWHVWRD*UDWXLW\7UXVWZKLFKLVLUUHYRFDEOH&RPPLWPHQWVDUH
DFWXDULDOO\ GHWHUPLQHG DW \HDUHQG 2Q DGRSWLRQ RI WKH $FFRXQWLQJ 6WDQGDUG $6   RQ ³(PSOR\HH
%HQHILWV´DFWXDULDOYDOXDWLRQLVGRQHEDVHGRQ³3URMHFWHG8QLW&UHGLW´PHWKRG*DLQVDQGORVVHVRIFKDQJHG
DFWXDULDO DVVXPSWLRQV DUH FKDUJHG WR WKH 6WDWHPHQW RI 3URILW DQG /RVV /LDELOLW\ IRU /RQJ 7HUP
&RPSHQVDWHG$EVHQFHVLVHVWLPDWHGE\LQGHSHQGHQWDFWXDULHVDVDWWKHEDODQFHVKHHWGDWH


$  *UDWXLW\
&KDQJHLQGHILQHGEHQHILWREOLJDWLRQV '%2 GXULQJWKH\HDU5VLQODNK
3DUWLFXODUV
*UDWXLW\±)XQGHG3ODQ
±
±
3UHVHQWYDOXHRI'%2DWEHJLQQLQJRIWKH\HDU


&XUUHQW6HUYLFH&RVW


,QWHUHVWH[SHQVHV


(PSOR\HHVWUDQVIHUUHG
 

$FWXDULDO JDLQ ORVV


3DLGEHQHILWV

 
3UHVHQWYDOXHRI'%2DWWKHHQGRIWKH\HDU


&KDQJHLQIDLUYDOXHRIDVVHWVGXULQJWKH\HDU
3DUWLFXODUV
3ODQDVVHWVDWEHJLQQLQJRIWKH\HDU
(PSOR\HHVUHVLJQHGWUDQVIHUUHG
([SHFWHGUHWXUQRQ3ODQDVVHWV
&RQWULEXWLRQVE\WKH&RPSDQ\
$FWXDULDOJDLQ ORVV 
%HQHILWV3DLG
3ODQDVVHWVDWWKHHQGRIWKH\HDU

5VLQODNK
*UDWXLW\±)XQGHG3ODQ
±
±


 






 








5HFRQFLOLDWLRQRISUHVHQWYDOXHRIWKHREOLJDWLRQVDQGWKHIDLUYDOXHRIWKHSODQDVVHWV
5VLQODNK
3DUWLFXODUV
*UDWXLW\±)XQGHG3ODQ
±
±
3UHVHQW9DOXHRI'HILQHG%HQHILW2EOLJDWLRQV


)DLU9DOXHRI3ODQV$VVHWV


8QUHFRJQLVHGSDVWVHUYLFHFRVWV


1HWDVVHW OLDELOLW\ UHFRJQLVHGLQWKH%DODQFH6KHHW
 



5HWXUQRQSODQDVVHWV5VLQODNK
3DUWLFXODUV
*UDWXLW\±)XQGHG3ODQ
±
±
([SHFWHGUHWXUQRQSODQDVVHWV


$FWXDULDOJDLQ ORVV 


$FWXDOUHWXUQRQSODQDVVHWV



&RPSRQHQWVRIHPSOR\HU VH[SHQVH5VLQODNK
3DUWLFXODUV

*UDWXLW\±)XQGHG3ODQ
±
±




 
 











&XUUHQWVHUYLFHFRVWV
,QWHUHVWFRVW
([SHFWHGUHWXUQRQSODQDVVHWV
&XUWDLOPHQWFRVW FUHGLW 
6HWWOHPHQWFRVW FUHGLW 
3DVWVHUYLFHFRVW
$FWXDULDOORVVHV JDLQV 
7RWDOH[SHQVHUHFRJQLVHGLQWKH6WDWHPHQWRI3URILWDQG/RVV

7KHDPRXQWVRIWKHSUHVHQWYDOXHRIWKHREOLJDWLRQIDLUYDOXHRIWKHSODQDVVHWVVXUSOXVRUGHILFLWLQWKH
SODQ H[SHULHQFH DGMXVWPHQWV DULVLQJ RQ SODQ OLDELOLWLHV DQG SODQ DVVHWV IRU WKH SUHYLRXV IRXU DQQXDO
SHULRGVDUHJLYHQEHORZ

5VLQODNK
3DUWLFXODUV
*UDWXLW\±)XQGHG3ODQ
    
'HILQHG%HQHILW2EOLJDWLRQDWWKHHQGRIWKH
 
 
 
 
 
\HDU
3ODQ$VVHWVDWWKHHQGRIWKH\HDU





1HWREOLJDWLRQDVDWWKH\HDUHQG
 

 

 
([SHULHQFHDGMXVWPHQWRQSODQOLDELOLWLHV±





*DLQ /RVV 
([SHULHQFHDGMXVWPHQWRQSODQDVVHWV±





*DLQ /RVV 
$FWXDULDO*DLQ /RVV GXHWRFKDQJHLQ
 

 


DVVXPSWLRQV

7KHDFWXDULDOFDOFXODWLRQVXVHGWRHVWLPDWHGHILQHGEHQHILWFRPPLWPHQWVDQGH[SHQVHVDUHEDVHGRQWKH
IROORZLQJDVVXPSWLRQVZKLFKLIFKDQJHGZRXOGDIIHFWWKHGHILQHGEHQHILWFRPPLWPHQW¶VVL]HIXQGLQJ
UHTXLUHPHQWVDQGSHQVLRQH[SHQVH


'LVFRXQW5DWH
([SHFWHG5DWHRI5HWXUQRQ3ODQ
$VVHWV
6DODU\(VFDODWLRQ5DWH
0RUWDOLW\

:LWKGUDZDO5DWH



±


±






SDIRUILUVW
\HDUVDQGWKHUHDIWHU

SDIRUILUVW\HDUV
DQGWKHUHDIWHU

,QGLDQ$VVXUHG/LYHV
0RUWDOLW\  
0RGLILHG 8OW

,QGLDQ$VVXUHG/LYHV
0RUWDOLW\  
0RGLILHG 8OW

±\HDUV
±\HDUV
±\HDUV
\HDUVDQGPRUH

±\HDUV
±\HDUV
±\HDUV
\HDUVDQGPRUH

7KHGLVFRXQWUDWHLVEDVHGRQWKHSUHYDLOLQJPDUNHW\LHOGVRI*RYHUQPHQWRI,QGLDVHFXULWLHVDVDWWKH
EDODQFHVKHHWGDWHIRUWKHHVWLPDWHGWHUPRIWKHREOLJDWLRQV
7KHHVWLPDWHRIIXWXUHVDODU\LQFUHDVHFRQVLGHUHGLQWKHDFWXDULDOYDOXDWLRQWDNHDFFRXQWRILQIODWLRQ
VHQLRULW\SURPRWLRQLQFUHPHQWVDQGRWKHUUHOHYDQWIDFWRUV7KHDERYHLQIRUPDWLRQLVFHUWLILHGE\WKH
DFWXDU\
7KH &RQWULEXWLRQV H[SHFWHG WR EH PDGH E\ WKH &RPSDQ\ GXULQJ WKH ILQDQFLDO \HDU  LV 5V 
ODNK 3UHYLRXV\HDU5VODNK 

&RPSRVLWLRQRIWKHSODQDVVHWVLVDVIROORZV
 5VLQODNK 
,QYHVWPHQW3DWWHUQ
*RYHUQPHQW6HFXULWLHV
'HSRVLWDQGPRQH\PDUNHWVHFXULWLHV
'HEHQWXUHVDQG%RQGV
(TXLW\6KDUHV
7RWDO



















/RQJ7HUP6HUYLFH$ZDUG
/RQJ 7HUP 6HUYLFH DZDUG LV DQ HPSOR\HH EHQHILW LQ UHFRJQLWLRQ IRU WKHLU OR\DOW\ DQG FRQWLQXLW\ RI
VHUYLFHIRUILYH\HDUVDQGDERYHWKHVDPHLVDFWXDULDOO\YDOXHG7KH/RQJ7HUP6HUYLFHDZDUGH[SHQVH
IRUILQDQFLDO\HDU5V1LO 3UHYLRXV\HDU1LO DQGWKHSURYLVLRQDVDW0DUFKLV5V
ODNK 3UHYLRXV\HDU5VODNK 
6HJPHQW5HSRUWLQJ
7KH&RPSDQ\KDVGLVFORVHG%XVLQHVV6HJPHQWDVWKHSULPDU\VHJPHQW6HJPHQWVKDYHEHHQLGHQWLILHG
WDNLQJ LQWR DFFRXQW WKH QDWXUH RI WKH SURGXFWV ULVNV DQG UHWXUQV RUJDQLVDWLRQ VWUXFWXUH DQG LQWHUQDO
UHSRUWLQJV\VWHP

7KHEXVLQHVVRSHUDWLRQVRIWKH&RPSDQ\DUHFDUULHGRXWRQO\LQ,QGLD$VWKH&RPSDQ\RSHUDWHVLQD
VLQJOHJHRJUDSKLFVHJPHQWQRVHSDUDWHGLVFORVXUHLVUHTXLUHGLQWKLVUHJDUG

3RVWFXUWDLOPHQWWKH&RPSDQ\¶VRSHUDWLRQVSUHGRPLQDQWO\UHODWHWRGLVWULEXWLRQRIWKLUGSDUW\SURGXFWV
0XWXDO )XQGV &RUSRUDWH 'HSRVLWV %RQGV DQG RWKHUV  HTXLW\ EURNLQJ DQG LQYHVWPHQW EDQNLQJ
VHUYLFHV

5HYHQXHDQGH[SHQVHGLUHFWO\DWWULEXWDEOHWRVHJPHQWVDUHUHSRUWHGXQGHUHDFKUHSRUWDEOHVHJPHQW$OO
RWKHULQFRPHDQGH[SHQVHVZKLFKDUHQRWDWWULEXWDEOHRUDOORFDEOHWRVHJPHQWVKDYHEHHQGLVFORVHGDV
XQDOORFDEOHLQFRPHRUH[SHQVHV

$VVHWV DQG OLDELOLWLHV WKDW DUH GLUHFWO\ DWWULEXWDEOH WR VHJPHQWV DUH GLVFORVHG XQGHU HDFK UHSRUWDEOH
VHJPHQW $OO RWKHU DVVHWV DQG OLDELOLWLHV DUH GLVFORVHG DV XQDOORFDEOH &HUWDLQ IL[HG DVVHWV ORFDWHG DW
EUDQFKHV KDYH QRW EHHQ DOORFDWHG EHWZHHQ VHJPHQWV DV WKHVH DUH XVHG LQWHUFKDQJHDEO\ EHWZHHQ
VHJPHQWV




























6HJPHQW5HSRUWIRUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK
5VLQ/DNK

)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG
)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG
3DUWLFXODUV
0DUFK
0DUFK


6HJPHQW5HYHQXH



 
 


D 'LVWULEXWLRQ

E (TXLW\%URNLQJ


F ,QYHVWPHQW%DQNLQJ


7RWDO


/HVV,QWHU6HJPHQW5HYHQXH

7RWDO,QFRPH 




6HJPHQW5HVXOWV

D 'LVWULEXWLRQ

E (TXLW\%URNLQJ
 

F ,QYHVWPHQW%DQNLQJ


7RWDO


$GG8QDOORFDWHG&RUSRUDWH,QFRPH




/HVV8QDOORFDWHG&RUSRUDWH([SHQVHV

3URILW /RVV EHIRUHWD[DWLRQ


/HVV3URYLVLRQIRUWD[DWLRQ


3URILW /RVV DIWHUWD[DWLRQ






$VDW


0DUFK
6HJPHQW$VVHWV 

D 'LVWULEXWLRQ

E (TXLW\%URNLQJ


F ,QYHVWPHQW%DQNLQJ


G 8QDOORFDWHG


7RWDO





6HJPHQW/LDELOLWLHV

D 'LVWULEXWLRQ


E (TXLW\%URNLQJ


F ,QYHVWPHQW%DQNLQJ

G 8QDOORFDWHG

7RWDO





&DSLWDO([SHQGLWXUH


D 'LVWULEXWLRQ


E (TXLW\%URNLQJ


F ,QYHVWPHQW%DQNLQJ

G 8QDOORFDWHG


7RWDO




'HSUHFLDWLRQDQG$PRUWLVDWLRQ

D 'LVWULEXWLRQ

E (TXLW\%URNLQJ


F ,QYHVWPHQW%DQNLQJ


G 8QDOORFDWHG


7RWDO















 
 
 

 
 

 

$VDW
0DUFK






























([SHQGLWXUHLQIRUHLJQFXUUHQF\
5VLQODNK
3DUWLFXODUV
$VDW
$VDW
0DUFK
0DUFK


2WKHU0DWWHUV









(DUQLQJVLQIRUHLJQ([FKDQJHV
5VLQODNK
3DUWLFXODUV
$VDW
$VDW
0DUFK
0DUFK


$GYLVRU\)HHV








2Q -XO\   WKH %RDUG RI 'LUHFWRUV DSSURYHG D SODQ WR UHDOLJQ LWV EXVLQHVV E\ VFDOLQJ GRZQ WKH
&RPSDQ\¶V5HWDLOVDQG,QVWLWXWLRQDO(TXLW\EURNLQJDQGGHSRVLWRU\EXVLQHVVHV³(TXLW\%XVLQHVV´ZKLFK
LVDOVRDVHSDUDWHVHJPHQWDVSHU$6

7KH VDLG UHDOLJQPHQW LV FRQVLVWHQW ZLWK WKH FRPSDQ\¶V ORQJWHP VWUDWHJ\ WR IRFXV LWV DFWLYLWLHV RQ WKH
RWKHUSURILWDEOHVHJPHQWVRIWKH&RPSDQ\YL]0HUJHUV $PDOJDPDWLRQVDQG,QVWLWXWLRQDO'LVWULEXWLRQ
ZKLFKZRXOGOHYHUDJHRWKHU7DWD&DSLWDO%XVLQHVV

7KH &RPSDQ\ UHFHLYHG LQSULQFLSDO DSSURYDO IURP &HQWUDO 'HSRVLWRU\ 6HUYLFHV ,QGLD  /LPLWHG RQ
6HSWHPEHUIRUDVVLJQPHQWRISDUWRILWVGHSRVLWRU\FOLHQWVDFFRXQWVWRDOHDGLQJSULYDWHVHFWRU
EDQN7KH&RPSDQ\HQWHUHGLQWRDQDJUHHPHQWRQ6HSWHPEHUIRUWKHVDPH

%URNLQJDQG'HSRVLWRU\OLFHQFHVDUHUHWDLQHGE\WKH&RPSDQ\DIWHUWKHFORVXUHRI(TXLW\%XVLQHVV

$VDWVW0DUFKWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKHDVVHWVRIWKH(TXLW\%XVLQHVVZDV5VODNKV
SUHYLRXV\HDU5VODNKV DQGLWVOLDELOLWLHVZHUH5VODNKV SUHYLRXV\HDU5VODNKV 

7KHIROORZLQJVWDWHPHQWVKRZVWKHUHYHQXHDQGH[SHQVHVRIFRQWLQXLQJDQGGLVFRQWLQXLQJRSHUDWLRQV
5VLQ/DNKV




7XUQRYHU


'LVFRQWLQXLQJ
2SHUDWLRQV

&RQWLQXLQJ2SHUDWLRQV

3DUWLFXODUV
,QVWLWXWLRQDO
'LVWULEXWLRQ
0DU

0DU

,QYHVWPHQW
%DQNLQJ

8QDOORFDWHG
0DU
0DU
0DU 0DU 


*UDQG7RWDO

(TXLW\%XVLQHVV
0DU
0DU
0DU




0DU






















2SHUDWLQJ([SHQVHV

,PSDLUPHQW/RVV

3URYLVLRQIRU(PSOR\HH
7HUPLQDWLRQ

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 









































3UHWD[SURILW /RVV 
IURPRSHUDWLQJDFWLYLWLHV







 

 

 

 

 



 

,QWHUHVW([SHQVHV
3URILW ORVV EHIRUH7D[
,QFRPHWD[H[SHQVHV
3URILW /RVV IURP
RSHUDWLQJDFWLYLWLHVDIWHU
WD[













 

 

 

 







 

 

 

 

 



 



























 

 

 

 

 



 





3UHYLRXV \HDU V ILJXUHV KDYH EHHQ UHJURXSHG  UHFODVVLILHG ZKHUHYHU QHFHVVDU\ WR FRUUHVSRQG ZLWK WKH
FXUUHQW\HDU VFODVVLILFDWLRQGLVFORVXUH



)RUDQGEHKDOIRIWKH%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUV





3UDYHHQ3.DGOH3'.DUNDULD)-'D&XQKD1-'ULYHU
&KDLUPDQ'LUHFWRU'LUHFWRU'LUHFWRU





3UDEKDNDU5'DODO6DQJHHWD.6LQJK$QHHVK0+RVDQJDGL3LQDO=DWDNLD
'LUHFWRU'LUHFWRU 
&KLHI)LQDQFLDO2IILFHU&RPSDQ\6HFUHWDU\ 










&RPSOLDQFH2IILFHU





0XPEDL
'DWH$SULO

